Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Dale Dunham Robert Stulac Vicky Lufrano Russ Siegman Robert Garcia

May 17,2023
Closed Session Meeting 5:30 P.M.
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705
(775) 267-2805

MISSION STATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the quality of life of its resident families and to maintain and operate those
facilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

It is the intent of the Board of Trustees to protect the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees’ wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order 1o ensure that every citizen desiring to speak before the Board has the opportunity to express his/her
opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any remarks or
gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculwre policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To
file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20250-94 10, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice} or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711. The TTY or HCO
(hearing carry over} number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities;: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommadations at the meeting are requested to notify the District Office in writing at 3394 James Lee Park Road,
Carson City, NV 89705, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance.

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on IHGID's website at: www.indianhillsnevada.com



AGENDA

5:30 P.M.

1.

Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.

Closed Session
Discussion only regarding possible amendments to the Collective Bargaining Agreement
with the International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 39, AFL-CIO.

Adjourn Closed Session

6:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting

4.

5.

6.

Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Pledge of Allegiance

Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to IHGID. The public may comment on any item that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitted to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
laking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

Approval of Agenda-Chairman

Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined
for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

Discussion and possible action to approve the Tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement
with Stationary Engineers, Local 39.
(Labor Law Attorney, Joel Locke/General Manager, Chris Johnson)

o Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
e (lose Public Comment

PUBLIC HEARING for the adopted Tentative Budget as amended for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024, no action will be taken. (General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District Accountant Stacie
Cobb)

Board of Trustees Discussion
Open Public Comment

Close Public Comment
Close Public Hearing




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Discussion and possible action to adopt the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 with
direction to the General Manager to have the adopted Final Budget for FY 2023-24 prepared
on the appropriate forms and timely submitted to the State Department of Taxation.

{General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District Accountant, Stacie Cobb)

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
o Close Public Comiment

Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal from Lumos & Associates in the
amount of $9,800.00 for Civil Engineering Services for the South Sunridge Park Dog Park.
(General Manager, Chris Johnson/District Engineer, Tim Russell)

® Board of Trustees Discussion
* Open Public Comment
¢ (Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal from Lumos and Associates in the
amount of $19,700.00 for additional professional services related to the Indian Drive sewer
lining design. (General Manager, Chris Johnson/District Engineer, Tim Russell)

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e (lose Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve amendments to the District’s Snow Removal
Policy 2010P-01. (General Manager, Chris Johnson)

® Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e (Close Public Comment

Discussion only regarding Indian Hills General Improvement District’s investments to seek
opportunities for ROI improvement within allowances prescribed under NRS.
(Trustee, Robert Garcia)

o Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
e (Close Public Comment



15.

16.

17.

18.

Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report

I. Administrative

2. Water

3. Wastewater
b. District Accountant Report
c. Engineer Report

d. Attorney Report

o Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
¢ Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the April 5, 2023, Board
Meeting.

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence

Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such an item or topic
be placed on a future agenda.

Adjournment

This agenda is posted at www.indianhillsnevada.com, htips://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:

As of 8:30 A M., May 12, 2023, by 8 |

District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road




AGENDA ITEM 8.

Discussion and possible action to approve the
Tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement with
Stationary Engineers, Local 39.

(Labor Law Attorney, Joel Locke/General
Manager, Chris Johnson)



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
Between

INDIAN HILLS GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

And
THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF

OPERATING ENGINEERS
STATIONARY LOCAL 39, AFL-CIO

July 1, 2020-2023 - June 30, 20232027



TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION.....ccecnnissnmssrnssnissnsissssssssssnssssesarssssssssases e —— 3
A. Union Recognition/Covered Employees ............. O O O T L L LT 3
B. District Personnel Policy .......... T T T T P P ey 4
C. Right 10 OrganizZe....couuceivsnrirnirisssisisssssssssssesessstssessissnsnessssssesssestssssssssasensensssasssossassasssssssans 4
D. Pertinent INfOrmMAtion .......ieciisiinsccsnessnsssansnssassasssisssassasssssssasssssasssssssssssesanssssnssanssasss wornedh
E. Union Use of Inter Office Communication Facilities ..........ccceueuuee. T O e 4
F. Release Time for Negotiations...........ccccercrannaas T L T T L T s 4

ARTICLE II - UNION DUES..... O T T R L T R e T L L T P T ot 5
A. Dues Deduction Authorization ...t 5
B. Indemnification.......cccccesveee. O T O T T T L L T X T T X T S

ARTICLE III - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS.......cccccininsinsininsnsssasssanssenssssssassans DL DT 5
A. Appearances before Employer ..........ccccevuenen OO O T L T e T 5
B. Employee State and Federal Rights ......cccvvevsrererssssassessessassasssessssassssssessessonsasessssnsssosssssasases 5

ARTICLE IV - WORKWEEK......ciciiiseentnsansscssnssassssessssssssssnsossesasesessassrissssessssssnssssssssssssasssssssssss 5

ARTICLE V - OVERTIME.......cconiiiinniisanissnsasssossossessesassnsssasssasssnsssasssssssssssssssstsosssssanessanes sesensl
A. Computing OVertime.......cocsrsernrenssnssenesssnsssnssessasssssssssssssssssossssnssss S —— 6
B. Prior Approval Required...........ccccineriiunineeas e S NS SO NS SReO 6

ARTICLE VI - GRIEVANCE RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT .......ccocceiectieneineensessansass 7
AL DefINItIONS.cciiicriraicrssssersssesssnssansasssssassssnsssasssassssossessasssssasssnssonsessnssarsrsssssnesssssarssasssssssssessassssss 7
B. Rights to Representation ... o/
C. Release Time for Grievance Hearings Before the General Manager ..........eseveseesesesecenses 7
D. INdividual RiZhLS ....cucciiiiiiiininiiniiiiiiiiinimmisissessssisisssessmssssssrsssssssessssssassrassessassensesss 7
E. Procedures........cccoeiienn. S RS 7

Step 1. Initiation of GrievanCe .....imniieiiiimininimmemmmmmsesissrsssissssssssssssss 7
Step 2. Petition the Board of Trustees..........umeinmmsmimmssimoimsis Sseees
Step 3. Binding Arbitration.......ccceems. S — 8
F. Arbitration Costs ............. rossessansesarsssnesasnns T O T L T P P L T ST 9
G. Exceptions to Time Limits ....iusiisessnssecressnsncscsassisnsassessssssssnsasssssssesssssssssasssssasasenssasasasease 9
H. Cooperation of the District and Union.......cciiisicscssonnmmsmsssessresssssesssesassssssases 9
L. Personnel Files ..iiiieicniiisninniniscisnsessssssnssessnsnsssssssssssasssssssssssssssessssssrsosssssasessassasss S

ARTICLE VII - RETIREMENT .....cccvcvvinnnnnsnsnssnnsnsnsssssssscssncsens AR 9

ARTICLE VIII - WAGES...... sessssssssseasans N 9
A. Rates of Pay .......cecsiniisinsvennna T T o T TR L O T X R L T w9
B. Call BACK PAY viicrucrsnssresnssssssssmssssssarsnssenssssesssesssssssssissssssesssosssonsssesssssnsssssassasenssessesnesesssnsass 10

ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS ...ccciivimnninininsssnissnessassrsssssissassasssassssrsossisassssssssasssssssssssanssssssssssass W12
A. Legal Holidays.....c.ccccessnessnssnssrcssesnsarnsnasessssssrnesssssassisnssassssssossnssansssssssssssas T OO 12
B. Holiday Falling within Vacation Period ............cccuu. e e SUEESMUNSS SSSS SEN O S 12
C. Holiday Observance........ccccusscanae T T T L e L T BT 12
D. Computing Holiday PAY ....ccreriresessesscsressnsssnsssansnssssssssassasssasassssssossssnssssosssssassassasssasassssssasss 12
E. Pay for Work on Holiday ..........cce.eceun.e. T O T T T T L T 14443

ARTICLE X - VACATION. .......cccccurnnrarernsasane Siessessssaisenissnssesbsessasetsssebisnsests conaennsses L
A. Computation of Vacation.......ccceeeresuecrnas resssssssasssseirsasaes staesrssrsesesssrnasssensserans 141413
B, Limitation ... e RSN SSSS S S 141413
C. Vacation Buy-Back Provisions .....eecesessmmesissisesmsssmsssomesesssesesses 141413
D. Employees Becoming Ill While on Vacation ..........ccuveeieeiicsennnonnssnsamsesiosssssnisans 141413

1



729 4 b (B 1 O, 6 G {8 L D 07 ) A D P weene 151514

A. Paid Sick Leave.......iiiniininsssnsnnssnnnsnnis SR Lo O T 151514
B. Accounting of Accrued Sick Leave ....icveveeisrasearees R 151514
ARTICLE XII - EQUIPMENT, TOOL AND CLOTHING ALLOWANCE ......cccse0nue 151514
A. Protective EQUIPIMENL......cciviieseconsisineissossssrcsscssossnnessassssssstssstsassssssssssnassrsasansassssssassss 151514
B. Uniform and Clothing ... 151514
L T e e rens S 164645
ARTICLE XIII - HEALTH & WELFARE......ccc.covveinusnese T T L s 161615
A. Health Insurance - District Plan.........ciiiincniensissniesssneseesisessccsansssnesssnse v 161615
B. Life INSUrance .......cccucecisecensesseesssasessenee reressstrssnnsssssararsenanssastesansaas 173716
C. Continuity of COVETrage ....ccuviiiiinrnnnissnnnsninsnnsisasissssssesssnsesssssssssassssssessasnsssassssse wene L TET LG
ARTICLE X1V - RECLASSIFICATION .....cconiiniciniisnncscscssssosenns O O L 171716
ARTICLE XV - DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS ....cocceisueisasernses R D T L L LT TR 173716
A, Personnel PoliCIes......c.ccuneccriesencsnnssscassnssessssssesssssscsssosrssassssssassssssssesassasassasessassssnsasess 1747116
B. Pre-Disciplinary Hearing ......cccuciiisissssiissessssssssssessrsssssssassssssssosssansansesssssassssssasssnse 17416
C. Initiation of Disciplinary Action.......ciiinicnnininnninsienenisisaessniess e 173716
ARTICLE XVI - LAYOFF POLICY AND PROCEDURE ........ S 181817
A. Determination of Positions to be Affected .........ccierrireninnissirnssnsrncsssssnssnsasssessssassens 181817
B. Determination of Job Classifications to be Affected ......c.ccinvcveiinccsccnisencisanseersenes 181817
C. Notice t0 UNIOM.uuiiiiiiiiemniecssnenesinoisnnsessisnsossessesssssossnsessnsessssssssonsesassesassesassssasssnsssassssss 181817
D. Notice t0 EMPIOYEE(S) cevcreecrresascranisanasencsssrssassasssnsassossonsassessassssssosesssnssssssssssssssssass v 181817
E. Recallu..iiiiniininiiiinissiinssiissnssssimssssensssassnsenss T T O 181817
ARTICLE XVII - PAY & EXPENSES FOR EDUCATION, TRAINING & LICENSING
............................................................................ e 191918
A. Pay and Expenses for Related Training ......usecsissrcmssissnssssnsssssssnsssesnsssonsss 191918
B. Education INCeNtive .....cciirertisrerssssssssansssnesssssssssasssssssssssnssassssassassssnsssonssssnssssasssnsssasee 191948
C. Educational Leave ........imimnnniniinmnimmiiensisssssmsmssmsssesisssssssssssssasssssssss 191918
D. Cost of Required LiCenSes......cmimmisisniissniisisissssanisnismsaiinsissssssstssssssssssssssassssssss 202019
ARTICLE XVIII - VACANCIES.......iciiiniiniininnssssssssisssssssssissssssssssassssas ssssessesronnenas 202019
A. Minimum ReqUiremMents .. ..cvecisisomsssssisssissssssssssssssessassssssasesssnsssnsssasssssssassassassssass 202019
B. Notice ..... OOt 202619
ARTICLE XIX - OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAMS............ 202619
ARTICLE XX - CONTINUITY OF SERVICES/ STRIKE & LOCKOUT PROHIBITION
.............................................................................................................................. RORRRTo—y ] |11} o
ARTICLE XXI - EFFECT OF AGREEMENT ......coviccsisamisussrsssasssessassassasssssssassssssnssasse 212120
A. Changes in ASreement .....ccccresiresniisrssrissessssrsssnsssssssnsessessesssesssassssssssssssssssssansssssssnsase 212120
e T L L1 e 1 1 O 212120
C. Savings ClaUse.......ciniiiisinsnisissnisssssassrmsnssssaissesssssssssisassssssnsssssssssssssassssessssssssassassasasss 212120
ARTICLE XXII - EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION ......cciiicinsenana rensersersesnsroros DM
APPENDIX A (1) cociiiininiirinnisiannnns AN e et NSRS 18
APPENDIX A (2) t1etteerneesescrssesrassasansesssssssernssrssssssssassessmmsssssassassssosssssasassascanne 19
APPENDIX B ...c.oovcrecsenssnsnisnssessssrssnssnasssssnssssssssssasesssssssnssstsasensessossssssssassessanasenssssssasassssassns 232322



AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into effective this 1 day of July, 20262023, by and between Indian Hills
General Improvement District, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, hereinafter
referred to as the “*‘District™", and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary
Local 39, and AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the “*‘Union*"".

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the District provides public services essential to the health, safety, and welfare of
the residents of the Indian Hills General Improvement District; and

WHEREAS, the employees of the District recognize their responsibility to provide such public
services to the community; and

WHEREAS, it is the duty of the District to negotiate in good faith with the employees who have
voluntarily chosen to be represented by the Union which is a party to this Agreement, and it is the
duty of the Union to negotiate in good faith with the District concerning wages, hours, and other
terms and conditions of employment; and

WHEREAS, the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to confirm in this
Agreement.

It is hereby agreed as follows:

ARTICLE ] — RECOGNITION

A. Union Recognition/Covered Employees

1. The District hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative, for
purposes of collective bargaining of the District’s employees who are employed in the positions
listed among those in Appendix A (1) & (2) attached hereto. The Union recognizes Nevada state
law does not require employees to select membership in the Union.

2. All full-time employees who are employed in the positions listed among those in
Appendix A (1) & (2) attached hereto, are covered under this Agreement. However, probationary
employees may be terminated without cause at any time during the probationary period, with no
rights of appeal under Article VI. Part-time, seasonal, and/or temporary employees are not covered
by this Agreement. All employees who are initially appointed to District service shall serve a
probationary period, which shall consist of the probationary period set forth in the District’s
Personnel Policies. An employee reclassified to a higher level position shall be required to serve
the designated probationary period for the new position. An employee who has been promoted to
a new position is covered under this Agreement, but may be demoted to his/her last held position



at any time during the probationary period without cause by the General Manager and such
demotion is not subject to the grievance procedure.

Part-time employees are defined as employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week.

Seasonal employees are defined as employees who maintain periodic employment related to the
seasons.

Temporary employees are defined as employees hired for a period not to exceed six (6) months of
employment.

3. The parties agree that the title of Supervisor does not currently meet the statutory
definition for “supervisory employee” set forth in NRS 288.075, and therefore, it is allowable and
appropriate for these employees to be included within the same bargaining agreement as non-
supervisory employees. However, in the event that the duties for any of these positions change,
both parties reserve the right to seek a determination from the Employee Management Relations
Board concerning whether any, or all, of these positions come within the definition of supervisory
employee set forth in NRS 288.075. In the event that the EMRB determines that any of these
positions meet the statutory definition of supervisory employee, then the employees in these
positions shall no longer be a part of this Agreement, but shall have a new Agreement immediately
go into effect which incorporates the provisions of this Agreement, and thereafter, shail negotiate
as a separate bargaining unit with a separate bargaining Agreement.

B. District Personnel Policy

The Union hereby recognizes the District’s adopted Personnel Policies and confirms that this
Agreement is supplementary thereto. This Agreement shall in no way be construed to incorporate
the District’s adopted Personnel Policies into this Agreement, with the exception of District Policy
Performance Management and Disciplinary Actions (as amended).

C. Right to Organize
Employees covered under this Agreement shall have the right to form, organize, join, and

administer an employee organization and to designate their representatives for purposes of
collective bargaining. Individual employees shall likewise have the right not to form, organize,
join, and participate in collective bargaining.

D. Pertinent Information

The Union may request of the District any reasonable information concerning the subject matter
included in the scope of mandatory bargaining which it deems necessary for and relevant to
collective bargaining.

E. Union Use of Inter Office Communication Facilities
The Union shall have the right to post notices of activities on bulletin boards, at least one (1) of
which shall be provided by the District for each department.

F. Release Time for Negotiations

Forthe purpose-of future-pegatationstheThe District shall provide, during normal working hours,
release time not to exceed fifty-six (56) hours total, per negotiated Agreement bargained, for up to
two (2) members of the bargaining unit to attend negotiating sessions. The Union shall reimburse

4




the District for the entire cost of such paid release time, or the members of the bargaining team
shall utilize accrued vacation or leave without pay for such release time for negotiations. Retuss
H-curret-contaet hnatne H NRS 288225205 wmendimets ) invalidated by final decisionof
EMEB-or Nevada Distriet Cowrt-including any judieial review or uppeslstothe Nevada Supreme
Court-durtng-the-term-of this-agreement

ARTICLE II -— UNION DUES

A. A-——Dues Deduction Authorization
The District agrees to deduct monthly Union dues from the earnings of each employee who is a
member of the Union and who authorizes the deduction on the prescribed written request form.
Such deducted amounts will be transmitted to the appropriate office of the Union on a monthly
basis.

B. Indemnification

The Union will indemnify and save the District harmless against any and all claims, demands or
other forms of liability, which may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken or not taken by
the District at the request of the Union in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE III — EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

A. A-——Appearances before Employer
Upon request, an employee shall be entitled to have a representative of the Union, steward or
business representative, present during any appearance before the District General Manager or
Board of Trustees if the employee reasonably believes that the matter being discussed will result
in disciplinary action being taken against the employee.

B. Employee State and Federal Rights

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny employees such rights as they have under the
policies, rules, and/or regulations of the Indian Hills General Improvement District, the State of
Nevada, the United States or other applicable laws, decisions and regulations.

ARTICLE 1V - WORKWEEK

A. ——A normal workweek shall consist of forty (40) hours, as assigned by the District
General Manager. Individual workdays will generally include one (1) thirty (30) minute
unpaid lunch break and two (2) paid fifteen (15) minute breaks. Said breaks will generally
occur once in mid-morning and once in the mid-afternoon, not to be combined with lunch
or taken at the beginning or end of the workday. Shift schedules will be posted and the
Union notified of any changes at least two (2) weeks in advance of any changes being
implemented, except in the event of an emergency.

2. All time worked during the workweek must be recorded by time sheet. All employees
will be signed in and performing at assigned tasks by or enroute to assigned tasks by the start time.
Employees shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time on the clock, not to exceed fifteen (15)



minutes, at the end of each workday to clean themselves up, as circumstances warrant, and/or 1o
plan for the next workday’s specific work activities.

3. With prior written approval by the General Manager of a Supervisor’s specific request,
individual events of daily scheduling flexibility may be exercised for individual employees. The
approval signature must be dated prior to the event,

4. When regular employees are assigned to work specific shifts regularly with hours other
than 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., or days other than Monday through Friday, such regular employees
shall receive a rate of pay equal to their hourly rate plus ten percent (10%) premium pay only for
hours actually worked other than 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. or hours actually worked on Saturday or
Sunday and excluding portion of regular shift worked Monday through Friday. The premium shall
apply to any overtime pay earned due to extra hours worked. Employees may select to work a
4/10 workweek in lieu of premium pay. Employees who select a 4/10 workweek shall normally
reccive three (3) consecutive days off. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to
employees who select ten (10) hour shifts or working Monday through Friday on a regular basis.

ARTICLE V -— OVERTIME

A. A.——Computing Overtime
Employees who are required by the General Manager to work in excess of forty (40) hours per
week shall be paid time at one half their regular rate of pay for the excess hours, except as provided
herein.

B. Prior Approval Required

Qvertime, and therefore overtime pay, is not generated by lack of sufficient planning of work tasks,
or by failure to punch out at stop time. Overtime may be required by the General Manager for
additional work performance, for responding to circumstances or by emergency “call-outs”. In all
cases, except emergencies, prior approval by the General Manager is required. In all cases, the
General Manager’s approval must be confirmed in writing and accompany time records for each
payroll in which overtime is to be paid to an employee.

C. Compensatory Time

Employees may elect to receive compensatory time in lieu of overtime. An employee who elects
compensatory time may not change their election except as provided below. No employee may
accrue more than eighty (80) hours compensatory time off in any fiscal year.

Compensatory time off is to be taken at the earliest time which is mutually agreeable to the
employee and the District. If compensatory time off is not used within six (6) months from the
date the compensatory time was earned, cash payment shall be made in lieu of compensatory time.
The District will not be unreasonable in the scheduling of compensatory time and will consider



the employee''s request and the operating demands but shall not prohibit an employee from using
accrued compensatory time unless such use would create a real disruption in operations.

Employees will receive a cash payment for all compensatory time earned, but unused at the time
of termination.

ARTICLE VI — GRIEVANCE RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT

A. A-—Definitions
A grievance is a claim relating to the interpretation or application of this Agreement.

A grievant must be one (1) or more employees covered by this Agreement or the Union.
For the purposes of this Article, days shall mean Monday through Friday, exclusive of holidays.

“This Agreement” means this executed and in-force contract between the Union and the District;
personnel issues governed by the District’s Personnel Policies are not the subject of this Article.

B. Rights to Representation

At the request of the affected employee(s), one (1) Union representative may be present for any
meeting, hearing appeal or other proceeding between the District General Manager and the
grievant relating to a valid grievance which has been presented under this Article.

C. Release Time for Grievance Hearings Before the General Manager

Grievance hearings brought before the General Manager relating to the interpretation or
application of this Agreement shall be conducted during normal work hours with release time, for
those employees who are involved in such hearings. When it is requested for the Union’s Shop
Steward to attend such a hearing scheduled during work time, he/she may be released from normal
duties, in order to participate. The Union shall reimburse the District for the entire cost of such
paid release time or the members of the bargaining team shall utilize accrued vacation or leave
without pay for such release time for grievance hearing. Return to current contract language if
NRS 288.225 (2015 amendments) invalidated by final decision of EMRB or Nevada District Court
including any judicial review or appeals to the Nevada Supreme Court during the term of this
agreement.

D. Individual Rights

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee having a
complaint to discuss the matter with the appropriate supervisors and to have the problem resolved
without the intervention of the Union.

E. Procedures
All grievances related to this Article shall be submitted in writing on a Grievance Report Form,
attached hereto as Schedule C and shall identify the grievance.

Step 1. Initiation of Grievance
Within seven (7) days of a grievant reasonably obtaining knowledge of the occurrence or condition

which is the basis of the complaint, the grievant may present the grievance, in writing, to the
General Manager. The General Manager shall investigate the matter, which shall include the right

7



to meet with and question the grievant, at the General Manager’s discretion. The General Manager
shall give a written decision to all parties concerned within ten (10) days of receipt of the written
grievance. The written reply shall include the reasons on which the decision was based.

Step 2. Petition the Board of Trustees

In the event the grievance is not resolved by the General Manager in a way which the grievant
agrees to be consistent with the interpretation or application of this Agreement, the grievant may
seek review by the Board of Trustees of the District by submitting the grievance to the Board, in
writing, within seven (7) days of receipt of the General Manager’s decision. The Board of Trustees
shall conduct a hearing within thirty (30) days of receipt of the written grievance. The hearing
shall be held in closed session, if allowable under the Open Meeting Law, and the Board of
Trustees shall have the right to question the employees involved, including the grievant or other
persons having knowledge of the incident in question. The Board of Trustees shall have the right
to continue the hearing to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting, if it determines that the
additional information is necessary in order to consider the grievance. After the hearing is
concluded, the Board shall vote in open session to either uphold or deny the grievance, or modify
the relief sought in the grievance. The decision of the Board of Trustees is final, except for those
grievances, which are expressly eligible for binding arbitration.

Step 3. Binding Arbitration

In the event that a grievance involving termination, demotion or a single incident of suspension
without pay involving three (3) or more days is not resolved by the Board of Trustees in a way
which the grievant agrees to be consistent with the interpretation or application of this Agreement,
the grievant may submit the grievance to binding arbitration for resolution. The grievant shall
exercise arbitration by giving written notice of intention to arbitrate within (30) days after he/she
has received the decision at Step 2.

Grievant may request a list of seven (7) potential arbitrators from the American Arbitration
Association. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the list, each party shall alternately strike names

19,



from the list, with the grievant striking first. The name remaining shall be the arbitrator. The
arbitrator shall consider the grievance and render a decision.

F. Arbitration Costs
Each party to a grievance, which is submitted to arbitration, shall bear its own costs of arbitration
and equally split the cost of the arbitrator and any court reporting fees.

G. Exceptions to Time Limits

The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed, unless extended by written
agreement of the parties.

Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance may be processed
through this grievance procedure until resolution.

H. Cooperation of the District and Union

The District and the Union will cooperate with each other in the investigation of any grievance
related to this Article, and further, will furnish each other with such necessary and relevant
information as is available and requested for the processing of any grievance.

1. Personnel Files

All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance related to
this Agreement shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants. Proper
documentation of the final results of a grievance procedure related to this Agreement shall be filed
in appropriate employee personnel files, provided that such a final result impacts the status of an
employee’s employment, wages, or benefits.

ARTICLE VII - RETIREMENT

All District employees shall be covered by the State of Nevada Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) pursuant to NRS Chapter 286. That statute provides for an employee to be able
to select from either of two (2) options to be made available by the employer, either entirely one
hundred percent (100%) employer-paid monthly contributions or employer/employee-paid
monthly contributions (fifty percent (50%) each with employee portion paid to PERS by the
employer through appropriate payroll deductions).

ARTICLE VIII - WAGES

A. Rates of Pay

1. Each District position title is described, classified, and has an hourly pay range established
in job descriptions within the District’s adopted Personnel Policies. Those salary ranges assigned
to those position titles, which are held by members of the Union, are displayed in Appendix A.

2. FY 20214: The entry and top of the FY 20244 salary range will be increased by
the USDL All-Cities All Urban Consumers’ Price Index (CPI-U) for the year (12 months) ending
March, 2020-2023 with a minimum of 1.0% and a maximum of 2.0% effective the first full pay
period following July 1, 20236. If the actual CPI-U is 0-1%, 1.0% will be used. If the actual CPI-
U exceeds 2.0%, 2.0% will be used. -Employees within the pay range receive the same percentage

1



increase as the increase for the entry and top of the pay range based on the USDL All Cities CPI
for the year ending March 20236.

FY 20225: The entry and top of the FY 20225 salary range will be increased by the USDL All-
Cities All Urban Consumers’ Price Index (CPI-U) for the year (12 months) ending March, 20244
with a minimum of 1.0% and a maximum of 32.0% effective the first full pay period following
July 1, 20244. If the actual CPI-U is 0-1%, 1.0% will be used. If the actual CPI-U exceeds 32.0%,
32.0% will be used. Employees within the pay range receive the same percentage increase as the
increase for the entry and top of the pay range based on the USDL All Cities CPI for the year
ending March 2024+

FY 20236: The entry and top of the FY 20263 salary range will be increased by the USDL All-
Cities All Urban Consumers’ Price Index (CPI-U) for the year (12 months) ending March, 20252
with a minimum of 1.0% and a maximum of 32.0% effective the first full pay period following
July 1, 20252. If the actual CPI-U is 0-1%, 1.0% will be used. If the actual CPI-U exceeds 32.0%,
32.0% will be used. Employees within the pay range receive the same percentage increase as the
increase for the entry and top of the pay range based on the USDL All Cities CPI for the year
ending March 20252.

FY 2027 The entry and top of the FY 2027 salary range will be increased by the USDL All-Cities

be used. Employees within the pay range receive the same percentage increase as the increase for
the entry and top of the pay range based on the USDL All Cities CPI for the year ending March
2026.

3. Merit Increases: Employees are eligible to receive up to a 3% merit increase, not
exceeding the top of the employee’s salary range commencing with the firstfull pay-pesiod that
tneludes-the-employee’s anniversary date. The Employee’s merit pay shall be determined based
upon their annual performance evaluation. If the total sum of the evaluation, divided by the total
categories is average or greater, the Employee shall receive a 3% merit pay increase. If the total
sum of the evaluation, divided by the total categories is less than average, the Employee may
receive, at the sole discretion of the General Manager, a 0-3% merit pay increase.

4. Promotions: IHGID proposes a 6.5% increase for employees promoted in FY 2024, #6.5%
inereaseforemployeespromeoted-in FY 2022, und o 7% inereaseforemployeespromotedn-FY
2023uny year, subject to the limitations contained in Article VIII(A)(4).

B. Call Back Pay
An employee who is called back to work by the General Manager and/or delegate, before or after

his regular work day as scheduled, shall receive a minimum credit of two (2) hours or the full
amount of hours and fractions of hours required for the call back event, whichever is greater.

Actual time shall be recorded by time sheet. Thirty (30) minutes additional to the actual time as
shown on the time sheet shall be added for each direction from home to the task and to return

10



home. Payment for travel time shall count towards computation of the two (2) hours minimum
credit.

When an employee is able to rectify any alarms from the SCADA Alarm System via computer,
the employee shall be compensated a minimum of one hour pay at the employee’s appropriate rate.
Additional alarms received within the same paid one hour do not apply.

C. Standb
Any employee who is required to be on standby for emergency work shall be paid three dollars

and fifty-seventy-five cents ($3.5075) per hour for each hour assigned to standby effective the
first full pay period effective the first pay period including July 1, 2846-2023 or following
hour effective July 1, 2025. Standby assignments shall be assigned in one (1) week intervals on a
fair and equitable basis to all qualified personnel. Such weeks coincide with workweek defined in
District policy. Employees may elect to trade standby assignments with other qualified employees.
It is the responsibility of the assigned standby employee to inform the General Manager of any
traded standby assignments.

Intermittent Standby is standby assigned during inclement weather for the sole purpose of snow
removal when conditions require such. Such intermittent Standby shall be paid at the same rate as
for emergency standby. As far as practical, all pay earned shall be added to the payroll for the
period during which the work was performed and an Intermittent Standby Assignment form shall
accompany the employee’s timesheet. In lieu of monetary compensation, employees may elect to
receive compensatory time on a prorated basis, based upon the employee’s hourly wage.

"Standby" means the ability of the employee to respond to the worksite within thirty (30) minutes
after notification, barring mitigating circumstances i.e. inclement weather, road construction, etc.
Any employee assigned standby who receives a telephone call between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and
7:30 a.m. to conduct District business shall be compensated a minimum of one hour pay at the
employee’s regular rate of pay. Additional telephone calls received within the same paid one hour
do not apply.

D. Meal Allowance

Employees, with the exception if those assigned standby, called back to work with less than two
hours’ notice shall receive a meal allowance. Any employee required to work two hours more than
their normally scheduled shift shall receive a meal allowance, and an additional allowance for

11



every four hours thereafter. The meal allowance shall be at the same rate as allowed by the State
of Nevada.

E. Longevity Pay

A stipend shall be added to the base pay of each employee who has completed the applicable terms
of eligible service in with the District pursuant to the longevity schedule set forth below:

Term __Stipend
5-9 Years 5250
10-14 Years $500
1519 Years - coon - oo 1000
20+ Years 51500

ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS

A. Legal Holidays
The following days shall be observed as legal holidays:

New Year's Day (January 1)

Martin Luther King's Birthday (third Monday in January)
President's Day (third Monday in February)
Memorial Day (last Monday in May)

Juneteenth (June 19)

Independence Day (July 4)

Labor Day (first Monday in September)

Nevada Day (last Friday in October)

Veteran's Day (November 11)

Thanksgiving Day (fourth Thursday in November)
Family Day (day after Thanksgiving Day)
Christmas Day (December 25)

One Floating Holiday Per Fiscal Year

Any other legal holiday that may be appointed by the President of the United States, or the
Governor of Nevada.

B. Holiday Falling within Vacation Period

If a legal holiday falls within an employee's pre-approved vacation period, that day shall not be
charged to vacation time.

C. Holiday Observance
When a designated holiday falls on a Saturday, the Friday before will be observed by the District

as the holiday, and when a designated holiday falls on a Sunday, the Monday after will be observed
as the holiday.

D. Computing Holiday Pay
Holiday pay will be based upon the employee's regular hourly wage for the number of hours in his
regular workday.

12



13

19



E. Pay for Work on Holiday
An employee who is required to work on a holiday which falls on the employee's regular day off

shall receive two and one half times (2'2x) the regular rate of pay for hours worked, provided that
the hours worked on the holiday are additional to the regular forty (40) hours actually worked in
the week.

An employee who is required to work on a holiday which falls on the employee's regular day off
shall receive two times (2x) the regular rate of pay for hours worked, provided that the hours
worked on the holiday do not exceed the regular forty hours actually worked in the week.

An employee who is required to work on a holiday which falls on the employee's regular work day
shall receive two times (2x) the regular rate of pay for actual hours worked.

ARTICLE X - VACATION

A. Computation of Vacation
Employees shall accrue vacation at the following rate:

During: 1% - 3rd years 80 hours (10 days)

“ 4*h - 7th years 120 hours (15 days)
o 8th - 14'" years 160 hours (20 days)
0 15" .19'" years 200 hours (25 days)
“ 20'" year or more 240 hours (30 days)

No employee shall be permitted to take vacation until after satisfactory completion of the
designated probationary period for the position held.

Vacation time must be pre-approved on the proper form by the District General Manager, at least
five (5) working days prior to use.

B. Limitation
Employeesinayacerse vacaton up-e-tweo-tmesthetseerual-rate. Effective on and after July 1,
2015 employees may only accrue vacation up to one and one half times their accrual rate.

C. Vacation Buy-Back Provisions

Upon termination, the employee will receive payment for all accumulated unused vacation. Upon
layoff, an employee may request and be paid all accumulated unused vacation. Between November
1 through November 15 an employee may elect to sell back up to forty (40) hours of accrued
vacation. The employee shall receive requested amount on the full-puy-period that-inechides
December Hirst paycheck in December. In order to be eligible for this provision, the employee
must have a minimum of one hundred twenty hours (120) of accrued vacation.

D. Employees Becoming Ill While on Vacation
An employee who submits satisfactory evidence that during his vacation period he was
hospitalized for a disability, shall, at his request, be granted permission to substitute sick leave for

14



the period of his disability to the extent that he is entitled to such leave, and provided such amounts
of sick leave as are required are accrued and available to him.

ARTICLE XI - SICK LEAVE

A. Paid Sick Leave

1. Starting with date of hire, eligible employees shall accrue leave at the rate of eight (8)
hours per month (96 hours per year). Sick leave may be used for employee illness or disability or
for the illness or disability of an immediate family member, as defined in the District’s Personnel
Policy, Leave and Benefits under Sick Leave.

2. No sick leave may be taken during the probationary period for the position held.
3. Unused sick leave will continue to accrue over the years.

4. Upon layoff under Article XVI, an employee may request and be paid for all accumulated
unused sick leave; in the instance of layoff only, the requesting employee’s accumulated unused
sick leave pay will be paid at the rate of one hundred percent (100%) of his/her hourly rate for all
hours so requested, including the first eighty (80) hours of accrued unused sick leave. In the event
that an employee voluntarily terminates employment, the employee’s unused sick leave will be
paid at the rate of fifty percent (50%) of his/her hourly rate for all hours so requested. In the event
an employee is terminated for cause, the employee shall forfeit all accumulated unused sick leave.

B. Accounting of Accrued Sick Leave
Employees shall be given a written accounting of the status of accumulated sick leave along with
employee paychecks.

C. Bereavement Leave

Upon the death of any relative defined in the District’s Personnel Policy, each employee shall be
granted three {3) days bereavement leave. Upon request of the District, the employee shall provide
documentation related to the employee’s use of the bereavement leave.

ARTICLE XII - EQUIPMENT, TOOL AND CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

A. Protective Equipment

The District General Manager will determine and the District will furnish as needed, the following
protective safety devices: including Safety Eyewear- goggles, face shield, welding helmet; Safety
Footwear- rubber sieeltoe safety boots, hip waders; Coveralls- white polypropylene; Safety jacket;
Mask- dust mask; Gloves-rubber, latex, welding; Harness- confined space harness (manhole);
Hard Hat; Reflective mesh vest and any other equipment as may be necessary to protect employees
from industrial injury and health hazards.

B. Uniform and Clothing

In addition to protective safety devices required to be worn for purposes of health or safety, the
District shall have a three-four hundred fifty dollar ($4350) clothing allowance per outside working
employee (field crews) to be used as District uniform which will include up to ten (10) shirts; up
to two (2) sweatshirts with District emblem; up to five (5) pairs of pants; up to one (1) pair of
insulated coveralls; and one (1) pair leather steel-toed boots not exceeding ene-hundred-—und

15

'



fiftytwo hundred dollars ($+56200.00). The-Three four hundred fifty dollars ($4350) is per fiscal
year and for a clothing allowance which is separate and apart from the allowance for the above
referenced boots. The employee may elect to use a District credit card as long as they stay within
their budget and return all receipts to the main office.

As an alternative to reimbursement based on receipts the District may at its option provide District
uniforms listed above at its expense not exceeding three-four hundred fifty dollars ($4250) per
outside working employee per fiscal year; excluding boots. Employees receiving District provided
uniforms at District expense do not also receive three four hundred fifty dollars ($4350) for
reimbursable uniform expenses.

Employees shall also wear leather, steeltaedsafety -boots which shall be subject to a ene hundred
fiftytwo hundred Dollar ($456200) boot allowance, which may be carried over by the Employee
for a period of one (1) fiscal year. Any funds not spent on the one pair of boots shall expire at the
end of the second fiscal year and cannot be carried over again. Employees spending in excess of
$156-200 for boots per year or a total of $286-400 for boots if the balance is carried over for one
(1) year, shall assume the sole cost and expense for the amount in excess of the authorized amount
and authorize the District to withhold the same from the employees’ paycheck, or may pay the
District directly for the deficiency in the cost.

Employees may retain one (1) pair of old leather steel-toed boots at the District workplace/locker
for “dirty” work.

District (outside working) employees are required to wear uniforms and shall keep said uniforms
in good repair.

C. Tools
The District will furnish all tools required in the performance of employees’ work.

All tools furnished by the District shall remain District property, but the employees shall be
responsible for the security of the tools assigned to them.

ARTICLE XIII - HEALTH & WELFARE

A. Health Insurance - District Plan
The District agrees to pay the cost of health insurance, dental, and vision for employees and their
eligible dependents as offered by the Nevada League of Cities.

For employees hired before July 1, 2012 the District will continue to pay 100% of the cost of
premiums for health insurance, dental, and vision for employees and their eligible dependents
except as provided below.

For employees hired on and after July 1, 2012 the District will pay 100% the cost of premiums for
health insurance, dental, and vision for employees and 80% the cost of premiums for health
insurance, dental, and vision for their eligible dependents with employees paying 20% of the
premiums for their eligible dependents via automatic payroll deduction. Effective the later of
August 31, 2012 or first open enroliment following July 1, 2012 the District shall pay no portion
of an employee’s dependent premiums where the non-working dependent is covered by the
employee’s spouse’s or former spouse’s health insurance plan by court decree or otherwise or

16



where the working dependent is covered or eligible for coverage by the dependent employer’s
health insurance plan. This exclusion does not apply to non-working dependents except where
covered by other health insurance as provided above. Employees will provide sworn verification
of coverage of their dependent(s) by another health insurance plan at time of open enrollment.

B. Life Insurance
The District shall provide term life insurance in the amount of Twenty Five Thousand Dollars
(825,000.00) per employee covered by this Agreement during the period of this Agreement.

C. Continuity of Coverage
All insurance coverage made available to, and selected by, employees under the provisions of this

Article, shall remain available during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIV - RECLASSIFICATION

The General Manager may investigate the classification of any existing position on the written
request of an employee or on his own initiative. If the General Manager determines that a position
should be reclassified, he may request approval of the Board of Trustees at the next available
opportunity for an agenda item before the Board. If the position is reclassified, the effective date
of the reclassification shall be the date of approval by the Board of Trustees, acting on a properly
agendized request from the General Manager. The decision of the Board of Trustees as to whether
the position shall be reclassified is final.

ARTICLE XV - DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

A. Personnel Policies

No employee shall be disciplined without just cause. Examples of “just cause” may include, but
are not limited to, current District Personnel Policy, Justification for Discipline and Due Process.
The adopted Personnel Policies of the District include formulations of policy as to disciplinary
actions for causes, which may be imposed upon employees by the General Manager of the District.
As a general policy, discipline shall be administered or imposed only by the General Manager,
and, as may be necessary, with the concurrence of the District’s Attorney, and if required, as
approved by the District Board of Trustees, to fit the circumstances.

B. Pre-Disciplinary Hearing
All employees shall have the right to request a pre-disciplinary hearing with the General Manager.

The employee shall have the right to have his/her Union representative at this meeting.

C. Initiation of Disciplinary Action

1. Disciplinary action of employees is the responsibility of the General Manager and this
responsibility may not be delegated. The General Manager may initiate disciplinary actions.
Employees whose position descriptions assign them direct supervision responsibilities of other

17



employees may request disciplinary action, when warranted, to the General Manager. No other
employee may initiate a request for disciplinary action.

2. One, or even a majority of the Board of Trustees, may not initiate disciplinary actions
against employees covered in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI - LAYOFF POLICY AND PROCEDURE

A. Determination of Positions to be Affected

The District shall determine when the statutory conditions are present which warrant a layoff.
When such conditions shall have been met, and a layoff is required, the District General Manager
shall determine the position titles, which shall be affected by layoff.

While essential services to the public must continue, and identifiable staff positions may be
necessary to insure continued delivery of those essential services, the General Manager will
consider seniority of employment, as well as the availability of employees with the required
qualifications, certifications, and/or licenses among the remainder of District employees, in
conjunction with the need for essential talents when determining employees to be affected by
layoff.

B. Determination of Job Classifications to be Affected
The General Manager shall determine reductions in staff levels that will have the least detrimental
effect on operations and will specify layoffs accordingly.

C. Notice to Union

Whenever it is determined that a layoff of employees may occur, and that such a layoff may involve
members of the Union, the General Manager shall give written notice of the layoff, including the
specific reason(s) such action is necessary and the estimated length of the layoff period to the
Union at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the effective date of layoff. Prior to any layoffs
the Union and District agree to meet to discuss alternatives to layoffs.

D. Notice to Employee(s)

All regular employees to be laid off shall be given written notice of such layoff at least fourteen
(14) calendar days prior to the effective date

E. Recall

The name of an employee who has been laid off shall be placed on the re-employment list and
shall be recalled in the inverse order in which the employee was laid off. Persons on such a list
will be offered appointment to an opening in the job classification, or equated job classification,
or any vacancy for which the employee is qualified, and no new employee will be hired until all
qualified employees on layoff status desiring to return to work shall have been offered the position.
The employee must provide the District with any address change while waiting for recall.

Notice of recall will be made in writing by certified mail to employee's address of record.

An employee who is sent a notice of recall must accept re-employment, in writing, within five (5)
working days of receipt of the certified notice of recall, or be considered to have abandoned his/her

18

@,



recall rights. A notice of recall shall be considered received, when sent by certified mail to the
employee’s address of record, three (3) calendar days after mailing.

An employee recalled to his former position must report for re-employment on the date established
by the General Manager, or be considered to have abandoned his recall rights so long as said date
is beyond five (5) working days from the date of receipt of the recall notice.

An employee on layoff accrues no additional sick leave, vacation or other benefits,
An employee on a re-employment list shall retain eligibility for recall for a period of two (2) years
from the date their name was placed on the list.

ARTICLE XVII - PAY & EXPENSES FOR EDUCATION, TRAINING & LICENSING

A. Pay and Expenses for Related Training
The District shall pay the full cost of tuition, books, and other reasonable expenses incurred by an

employee in connection with any District-required course, workshop, seminar, conference or in-
service training session. Advanced arrangements will be made by the District for transportation
and lodging. The reasonable cost of meals shall be reimbursed to the employee on the basis of the
per diem allowances established by the District, after attendance at the required training.

B. Education Incentive

If an employee desires to seek reimbursement for education costs related to a course at an
accredited college or University, he/she shall meet with the General Manager prior to enrolling in
the course. The General Manager shall have the sole discretion to determine the maximum
reimbursable amount, if any, for the costs of tuition, lab fees, books, and other needed materials,
taking into consideration the costs of the course and whether the District believes that completion
of the course by the employee provides any benefit to the District; however, establishment of a
maximum reimbursable amount above Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) per course requires prior
approval of the Board of Trustees. Once the maximum reimbursable amount has been established
for a course, the General Manager shall provide this information to the employee in writing. Upon
satisfactory proof of completion of the course, the District will reimburse the employee as follows:

If the employee receives a grade of C, or better, the District will reimburse one hundred percent
(100%) of the maximum reimbursable amount.

If the employee receives a passing grade in a Pass/Fail course, the District will reimburse one
hundred percent (100%) of the maximum reimbursable amount.

C. Educational Leave

1. The District recognizes the inherent value of an additionally educated workforce and
strongly encourages each full-time employee of the District to avail themselves of the opportunity
to continue education for personal growth. If the course work involved is directly beneficial to the
District workforce, as determined at the General Manager’s sole discretion, the District will
provide educational leave with pay, as set forth in Section C-(2).

2. Educational leave with pay may be scheduled and granted for up to a maximum of two
(2) hours per week to full time regular employees, with prior approval of the General Manager.
Employees may choose to use available vacation leave in conjunction with this leave. No overtime

19



benefits accrue to the employee for use of educational leave if attendance is outside of the
employee’s regular working hours; attendance is voluntary; the course is not directly related to the
employee’s job; and the employee does not perform any productive work during such attendance.

3. Advance approval for educational leave must be given by the General Manager who will
consider the potential impact of the timing of the requested educational leave and the arrangements
which may be made to avoid undue impact on other employees.

D. Cost of Required Licenses
The District will pay the cost of license and certification examinations required for employees to
maintain their current position.

ARTICLE XVIII - VACANCIES

A. Minimum Requirements

It is the policy of the District to hire the most appropriately qualified applicant to fill all vacancies.
Vacancies and/or promotional opportunities shall be filled when possible, by interested current
District employees who meet the requirements of the position as established by the District.

B. Notice

Notice of all vacancies and/or promotional opportunities within the District shall be given to all
employees of the District through briefings, or otherwise, or shall be posted on bulletin boards
within the District departments for a period of not less than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the
commencement of competitive advertising.

When recruitment advertising commences, the Union will be notified.

ARTICLE XIX - OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAMS

The District shall establish safety and health programs, and maintain an effective and
comprehensive occupational safety and health program consistent with the provisions promulgated
under Chapter 618 of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

ARTICLE XX - CONTINUITY OF SERVICES/ STRIKE & LOCKOUT PROHIBITION

The District and Union recognize the absolute necessity of continuous and uninterrupted operation
of District services. There shall be no strike, work stoppage, or any other spontaneous or organized

20

A



effort to interrupt the operation of District services or operations within District facilities.
Likewise, District agrees not to lockout employees.

ARTICLE XXI - EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

A. Changes in Agreement
For the term of this Agreement, no change shall be made in any provision of this Agreement unless
the parties agree in writing.

B. Successorship
If, during the term of this Agreement, the District merges with, is taken over by, or transfers its

assets to another governmental entity (Successor Entity), then, and in that event, the District agrees
to use its best effort to require the Successor Entity to assume, take over, and be bound by the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

C. Savings Clause
If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof to any employee is held to be contrary
to the law, then such provision or application shall be deemed invalid, to the extent required by

21

o3



such a judicial decision, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and
effect.

ARTICLE XXII - EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION

This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from July 1, 2626-2023 through June 30,
20273, The District may reopen this agreement during its term to address a “fiscal emergency” in
accordance with the requirements of NRS 288.150(4).

U
H
H
#
H
#
#
#
H
#
This Agreement is executed by the authorized representatives of the parties on this day of
. 202063,
FOR:
INDIAN HILLS STATIONARY ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT of the International Union of
Operating Engineers, AFL-CIO
[-'hriﬁ—.hﬂmmﬁDale Dunham, Chairman, Board of Trustees . Bart Florence, Business
Manager
JehnlufraneChris Johnson, General Manager - — Jeff Gladieux, President
Jerry Frederick, Business Representative
Steve %‘Fnu%hBrandv Johnson, Director of
Public Employees

Matthew Bell, Member/Negotiator

22

Y



APPENDIX A

Insert New Appendix A

APPENDIX B
INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PAYROLL DEDUCTION AUTHORIZATION

I, the undersigned, being a member of the International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary
Local 39, and required by the Constitution and Bylaws of that organization to contribute dues, per
capita and assessments in a specified amount, hereby authorize the Indian Hills General
Improvement District to make the deduction from my semi-monthly compensation, in conformity
with the agreement between the Parties, and effective the first pay period following the date hereof.

23

Y



It is further directed that the Indian Hills General Improvement District will then remit said monies
to the above organization in the manner prescribed.

NAME (PRINT) _ HOME PHONE
STREET ADDRESS

CITY STATE YAlg
SOCIAL SECURITY # WORK PHONE
CLASSIFICATION WORKSITE
SIGNATURE DATE SIGNED

A ST AT T

24

Al



AGENDA ITEM 9.

PUBLIC HEARING for the adopted Tentative
Budget as amended for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, no
action will be taken.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District
Accountant Stacie Cobb)

a7



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
TENTATIVE BUDGET FISCAL YEAR
2022-2023 INDIAN HILLS GENERAL

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

The public is hereby notified that a Public
Hearing will be held at the Indian Hills General
Improvement District Office, at 3394 James
Lee Park Road #A, Carson City, Nevada
89705, on May 18, 2022, at 6:00P.M. to review
and adopt the final budget for Fiscal Year
2022-2023.

The Tentative Budget for Indian Hills General
Improvement District has been prepared

in such detail and on appropriate forms as
prescribed by the Nevada Department of
Taxation.

Copies of the Tentative Budget are on file

at the District’'s main office located at 3394
James Lee Park Road #A, Carson City,
Nevada 89709, the Douglas County Clerk and
the Nevada Department of Taxation. They are
available for inspection at the District’'s main
office.

Pub Date: May 7, 2022 Ad # 23944



AGENDA ITEM 10.

Discussion and possible action to adopt the Final
Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 with

direction to the General Manager to have the
adopted Final Budget for FY 2023-24 prepared

on the appropriate forms and timely submitted to
the State Department of Taxation.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District
Accountant, Stacie Cobb)

QY



134

oy

0£ 9L $ ¥0616°101 $ wicsigs $ JALVIIHE % SARIVIVS TV.LOL| 68
saxe; 's1ad "Yeat] ‘I MOISIA BILP 0000762 $ 000SH'ET $ SAXVL/SLIIANAY g¢
P0'61L°TL $ F#LSOL'YY $ SANAVIVS TV.LOLANS] 2
[ENIDOE UCLBIBALDIS 25001 00°000°S1 § 00000°€I $ LO/ADNIDONILNOD AYVIVS oc
Ge
ve
£¢
ze
13
%07 9€°661°91 $ ZI60I°SI $ INVLSISSV LY0ddNS JALLVILISININAY 0
%01 96°661°C $ Z9v60°C $ JOLVYNIQYO0D ONITTIE ALITLLN L/d 62
%02 v8 7T 6l § 9670LSI $ LINVINNODIDY 82
8207 8T L6861 $ ¥0'66L°81 $ YIDVNVIA TYHINED 2
92
6g
Arefes [e103 Jo s8eiuasiad ILVTIA ¥ SIIAVIVS| ¥e
€2
PT-€7 £T-77 FALLVULSININGAY - SASNAIXA | 22
TVYNI4 TYNI4 ¥
0Z
6L
00°L9F' 111 00'9LL°€85°1 $ 0060€°TLY T S AANTATY TVANNY - TV.LOL| 8!
AN
9L
51
00°9LL'€8S1 $ 0060£TLY'] $ SANNAATH TVLOLANS| v
€l
00°00L°1T $ 0000Z°1C £ 94 ALV M WHOLS ZlL
007005 $ 0000< $ ANNIATY D39 ANV MdVd L
= ¢ SAAYIASTY SANNA NOLLYIDTYdad oL
00°005°T $ 00009°1 ¢ LSTHUILNI )
00°01L POP $ 00°€8¢'78E $ (X1D) Xv1 qaLvdair1osNOD ]
00'99E P51’ $  00'979°990°1 $ WHIOTVA AV L
106L°0 $ 106L°0 $ Jo el ¥eL 1R | 9
SANNIAATA| S
AINTIAIAIA rI-£27 €7-77 4
SHLON TYNIA TVYNIA $7-£7 LA9ANE JALLVINIL A3s04d0ud| |
d 0 N W |2 ERELL] o) | ] | v

“NINAY- LOIMLSIA INTNIAOU4dINI TVHIANTD STTIH NVIANI




08
0£° €901 $ F0691°9kE $ PLSOITES $ TVLOLANS| 6
8.
L
9l
Yl
Ve
$T-£7 £T-22 AVILNO TVLIdVD| €L
TVNIA "TYNIA zL
|73
0L
69
89
0L €90°'%1 $ v0691°9PE $ vLS01'TES g sasuadxa ey | /9
00°'005°9 $ 000021 $ uonyedadaq| 99
59
00°000°1 00'0SL'LET $ 0005L'9£C $ SAITddNS % SADIAYAS TV.LOLANS| ¥9
£9
29
* * * * * x| 19
007000°T $ 00000t Y SACANVTTIDSIN 09
00'005 $ 00°00S $ SIWHOLHINN 65
00'000°t $ 00001°€ $ JDVLSOd/SONITIVIN 85
00°000°L1 $ 00000°LI $ JONVUNSNI s
00°005°1 $ 000001 $ TAIAVYEL %% NOLLYONAT % ONINIVIL 95
00000°T $ 00000°C $ SADIAYAS TVIAOLSND S5
0000091 $ 0000091 $ INOH4ATAL ¥5
00°000°S¥ $ 00000°tk $ ISNAdXH D440 £5
00°000°1 $ 000001 ) Tand - ATIIHIA zs
00°000'1 $ 000001 $ WEd - ITOIHAA 5]
00°000°[ $ 000001 $ W % Y ONIQTINg 05
00'000°6 $ 00000°] $ ASVAT LNAIWAINDA 13
007005°T $ 00000C $ SVD - SALLIILLN g
00°000°S $ 00005t $ ALIDIYLDATE - SALLILLN i
00058 $ 00058 $ WVYYD0dd ALTIVS o
00°000°L01 $ 00000CTII $ SHIIAYAS TYNOISSTIOUd &P
%%S$T 0070096 $ 000096 $ STALSNUL 40 AuvOod (2
%S Tt 00°008°¢1 $ 00002°€l $ ONIANMA NOLLYIDZHdad £p
SAT1ddNS % SADIAUAS| 2v
| N W plajalal 2 | g | v

“NIANQY- LOTYASIA INSNIAOUdINIT TVHANTD STTIH NVIANI

3]



33

G6
(9£°19€"€€€) $ (0,'966°987) $ uoneardap Y LIM (5s0)) Jyoid| +6
£6
(99'v90'6) $ $9°8¢9' $ 0€f0LEl S uopepaldap LNOH.LIM (ssop) oig| z6
06
99'v9£ 9%) $ (g 19¢'cEe) $ (0L°966'980) [ SASNAIXA HAAO SANNITATH LAN| 68
88
AIDNADNILNOD ATAVMOTIV] .8
a8
99'1€8°LST $ 9CLEILI6 T $ 0LSOE6SL ] §  ASNAIXT ANOA TVHANTD TYANNY - TVLOL| 5%
8
9€'8SHLTI] $ 86'PI8°0L6 $ ASNAdXFA-uonduny S1IATULS TV.LOL| €8
96°60S EP¥ $ 86PLEIS $ ASNAJIXA NOLLYVFIOIY ¥ SMUVd TV.LOL| 28
$0°691°95€ $ PLSOI‘TEE $ NIAQV - SISNAIXE TVIANNY - TVLOL| 18
0 ] N | W Pidl3fal 2 | 8 [ v

-NINAV- LMY LSIA INTWIAOAd NI TVHIANTD STTIH NVIANI



00°00T'1 $ 000001 $ ISNAdXT ANOHdI TAL oy

00°00S ¥ $ 00000 $ Tand 6¢

00000 $ 00000% $ W®Y d1N0d 8¢

00°000'¢ $ 00°000'€ $ W % ¥ - SATOIHAA i€

00°002 $ 0000C $ W % ¥ DNIa1INgd 9

00°000°0¢ $ 00°000°0€ $ SqI1ddNsS W % A 5¢

00°00§ $ 00005 $ TVLINTY LNTWNLINOT e

00°000°09 $ 00°00S°SS $ JaLvm £

00°000°¢ § 000051 $ sed [exeN - SLLITILN ze

00°005°L § 000059 $ ALIDILOFT - STILITILN Le

00°000'C $ 000051 $ WVIDOUd ALIAVS ot

00°000°L $ 0000011 $ SADIAYAS TYNOISSTA0Ud 6C

%05°Cl 00°008'% $ 00008+ $ SHHLSMNAL 40 qYvod 8z

%STY 00°008'S1 $ 0000t $ DONIANNA NOILYIDTIdaa iz

SAITddNS ¥ SADIAYIAS| 82

3

36'v3L'Y 96'7£5'0TT $ 86'6vLSIT $ QALVTIY ¥ SATAVTIVS TVLOL| 2

£C

soxe] "si0d “qI[edY ‘JI|UOISIA/TEIUIP 00°00€°SS $ 0000p"8L $ SIXVL/SLIAANTL rA

96'¥£T 91 § 86'6¥CLEI $ SAMVIVS TV.LOLANS| 12

|ETLIDOR UONEBIBAMIIS %500 [ 0000097 $ 0000LLI $ 1O/ ADNADNILNOD AYVIVS 0z

6L

%02 9¢°661°91 $ ZI'601°SI $ [VLSISSV LJ0ddNS FJAILVILSININGY 81

%001 95°661°C $ T9P60'T $ VOLVNIQHOOD ONITIIE ALITILO L/d Il

%002 ¥8°TTV61 § 96'TOLSI $ INVINNOJOV 9l

%0°0T 87'L63°61 $ P066L81 $ AIOVNVIA TVIANTD Gl

141

£l

rA)

%02 08°T06°€1 $ $TOS8TI $ alueydIUL L

4] 8

(2557 wouy dn paisnfpe) %01 LIPS 0T $ 088511 $ (FNIL TINd) NOSY¥Id ALITILN 6

%001 0" 0L0°LY $ 075sscy $ [ NOSHHAd ALITLLN g

z

Kre[es [e10] jo aBejuadiad )

S

JaLIvVIad & SAIVIvS| v

€

AINTIALAIA vT-€T £2-7¢ $T-€707 Ad| ¢

SALON TVNId TVNId LADANG ASNAIXE NOLLVIYDFA ¥ SHAVI]| ¢
S o 0 d o] a | 2 | 4 | v

33

JHA/SMUVA - LOTALSIA INTWIAOUIII TVHINTD STTIH NVIANI



£l
ZL
(zo's98°T1) $ 96'605‘ctt $ 86vLL9SH $ SASNAJIXA SHAVd TVLOL| 1L
oL
69
89
{00°000'+2) = $ 00000+ $ AVILAOO TYLIAVD TV.LOLLANS| 29
g9
)
14°)
€9
00°000'+T $ SI1dNO0D SINNAL FOVIINSTT 29
L9
09
65
85
AVILNO IVLIAVD SMUVd| 45
pT-€7 £7-77 as
TVNII TVNIA g5
[
86'FEITI $ 96605 CHp $ B6PLETEY $ sasuadxq [e10]1 [ €S
00°000°PS $ 00°005°TS g NOLLVID3443d] 2§
LS
00°058°t 00°506'891 $ 00°STI'¥9I $ SAI'IddNS ¥ SIHAYAS 1V.LOLANS| 0§
6
[*14
* * * * * iy
00°000'9 $ 000009 $ ISNAIXT DTL/SINIAT 21'1dnd or
00°00S $ 00°00S $ SNOANVTITIDSIN 14
00°SL6 $ 00°STL $ SIWIOAINN vy
00°000°L1 $ 00°000°L1 $ TINVINSNI e
00°005 $ 00008 $  NOILVONAA % ONINIVYL “TIAVIL P
00°00§ $ 00°00% $ AIIAYAS 4OVdAV D) Iy
| IR D d [o] a | 2 | 8 | w

DTW/SHMUV - LOTHLSIC INFINIAOHdNI TVHINTD STTIH NVIANI




BIEETH
00'000°61 $ 00000°¢I b SHITddNS N %® ¥ £e
007008 $ 0000¢ $ TVINTY INTFWJINOF €
00°005°S $ 00°00S°S $ ALIDELOATd Le
00°000°C $ 000051 $ WVID0Ud ALTIVS oe
00°000°C1 $ 000001 g SHIIAYIS TVNQOISSTd0dd 62
%0821 00°008't $ 00008F ) SHALSNYL 40 AIVOd :74
%STt 00°000'+1 $ 0000£CI ) ONIANNA NOILVIOaYddd e
SHAI'TAANS % SHOIAYAS| 92
14

8CER1°]E § 9£€ECCET ¢ 86'6Ft'L6] g JALVTIA % SATIVIVS TVLOL| ¥2

£C

S3xes *s13d "Y[eal] "J|/UOISIA/[BIUIP 00°00£°89 $ 00001°CS $ SIXVL % S1LIddNTd A
74

Q€' €ET L1 § 86'6FTSHI $ SHRIVIVS TV.LO1dNS| 0¢

6l

[BTLIDOB UONEIBASDIS 24,00 [ 00°00+°9T $ 0000FCT $ ADNHONILLNGD AdVIVS 8L
[EAOWDI MOUS 10] dUIl) AGPURIS SINOY (ST 00°009 $ 00009 $ dNILL AGONVY.LS Ll
9l

%0 9€°661°91 $ ZI'601°C1 $ NVILSISSY 190ddNS FJALLVILSININGY Gl

%001 96°661°C $ T9v60°C § MOLVNIYOOD HONITIIE ALITILN L/d ¥l

%0T ¥R TTr 61 $ 96°70L°%] $ LNV INNOQIIV €l

%0002 87°L68°61 $ 10'66L'81 b HADVNVIN TVHINTD 4!

Ii

oL

%07 08°206°¢1 g FT0SBTI % Jtueydowr 6

g

(2557 wouy dn paisnlpe) o501 LIPS 0T $ 08'8¢€S°11 g JLL TTNd NOSY3d ALITIL L
%001 03'890°8% $ 0TSSIOF 5 1 HO4L S4O dT1d1d 9

Ale|es [e}0) Jo adejuaoiad S

14

QILVTad » SATUVIVS| €

ADNTHIAHIA yT-£7 £T-TT 4

S4LON TVNIA TTVNIA PT-£7 - 1L3OANG NOTLONNA SLATHLS| L

S o O d | 3 | a | o ] g | v

S1334LS - LOMLSI LINIFWIAOHIWI TYHINITD ST1IH NYIONI



slaang

-~
)

8€€E9°0ST $ 9C8SHLZI'T  § 86'FI80L6 3 SASNAIXH SLATILS TVLOL| 99
59
00°000'8L 00°000°0S $  00°000°LZF $ AVILNO TVLIAVD TVLOLINS| +9
£9
29
19
09
00000505 $ SLOArOdd LI991S 65
00'000°L2Y § spunj 9AJasaI 192N - SLOATOYd LITIULS 86
LS
AVILNO TY.LIdVD| 95
¥I-€7 £7-17 S5
TVNIA TVYNIA ¥Z-€7 - NOLLONNJA SLATILS| vs
€8
8£°€£98L 9¢'85H°CT9 $ 86VT8EFS $ sasuadxj |ejo] | 25
00'005°LLT $ 000001+ $ NOILLVIOTYdAd| 1
0s
000S6°t 00°STH'601 $ 00°6LF'S01 $ SAT'1ddNS ¥ SADIAYAS TVLOLANS| 67
14
A 4
00°000°0Z $ 0000002 $ AVM 40 LHONY/SLDAr0Ydd 1d941S or
* * * * * * 14
00008 $ 00008 $ SNOINVTTIDSIN v
00°SL6 $ 00°STL $ SIWIOAINN e
00°000°LT $ 00°000°LI $ JONVUNSNI g
007005 $ 00008 $ TAAVIEL %% NOLLYONAT % ONINIVYL W
00°00¢ $ 0000¢ $ ADIAYAS FOVAIVD o
00009 $ 00009 $ SANA/ASNIdX A AD1430 8¢
00°00S°1 $ 000051 $ INOHJATAL 8¢
00°00S't $ 00°00S‘€ $ Tand £
00005y $ 00000'% $ W % d INTFNJINO3I 9¢
00'000'S $  00°000°'S $ N % ¥ - STIDIHAA L3TT14 [
0005 $ 000Sz $ W % ¥ DONIA1Ing [
o 0 d 3 | a | 95 | g

S1334Y1S - LOIHLSIA INSWIAOHANI TVHINIO STIIH NVIONI



M~
)

dIAMAS

9¢

0L 1£6'9€ $ $968['9Tr $ S$6LST68E $ dILVIId ® SATAVIVS 'TVLOL|s¢

s Sl $ &>

fsaxe *suad “yiesy 3t /uoisiaEIuap 00°005°LE1 $ 00001°0T1 $ SIXV.L ANV SLIJANTd x>

$9'689°88¢ § S6LSI'69T $ SANVIVS Tv.LoLans|ze

21208 UORBIBANIOIS JO %00 | 00'861°SS $ 00869'St $ 10 / ADNIONILNOD AdV1VS Ie
00°208°€1 $ 00708°€l $ AGANVILS o€ |

514
%0 9¢°661°91 $ TI'601°SI § LNVLSISSV LH0ddNS JAILVYLSININAY M

2,00°0¢ 69°865°9 $ L8€8T9 $ YOLVNIQUOOD ONITTIE ALITILN L/d i

%02 ¥8°ZTY61 $ 96TOLSI $ LNVLNNOJOV 9z

%07 87 L6861 $ F0'66L8I $ WIDVNVYIW TVIINTD sz

ve

54
PST Wosj umop paisnipe) o401 89°6E1°S $ 088ES°TI $ JWIL T1Nd NOS¥Id ALITLLN N

2,001 0TLIET9 $ OF¥EI6S $ 11 LNIVIN/SdO MM 1z

0z
%0€ 0T P$8°0¢ $ 9esLT6l $ oruey2aw 61 ]

%001 v ¥97°69 $ OPPIgEY $ YOSIAYIANS dO YALVMILSVM m

Alejes [e101 Jo a8ejuaolad Ll
aLvTay % SHEVIVS| oL |

SASNAJXA| 5t

¥T-€7 £7-7T i

TVNIA TYNIA PZ-€207 LADANG SJO JAMAS| €4

A

(00°€86°3¢) 00°0ZI L10'T $ 005010501 $ SANNIATY TVLOL| |}

oL

6
: $ 000808 $ S394 NOLLJANNOD 8]

a3sn SIAYISTT ALV 1

00°0Z1 $ 00T $ LSTAILNI 9

00°000°T10'1 $ 00000896 $ $334 YaMas 5

SANNIATY| ¥

£

AINTHALAIA V€T £7-27 3

TVNIA TVNIA $7-£707 LADANE SdO HAMIAS| |

N W ] A | 3 lal o) | ] | v

HIAMIS-LONILSIA INTWIAOUdINT TVHINID STTIH NVI

QNI



3%

HAMIS
TYNIA TVNIA $7-€207 LADANG SIO JAMIAS| €2
zL
(0£999°Z%) $ (59't66'90C) $ (56°LZEFST) $ SASNALXT HAAO ANNIAAAY 40 SSEOXA| 1L
oL
0L7189°¢1 $ SOVIISIT $ S6TEFTOT| $ SASNAIXA TV.LOL| 69
00°000°€8¢€ $ 00000'8LE 3 NOLLVIDIdJAd| 89
19
(00°05T°82) 00°5Z6'80F $ 00SLI'LEY $ SAI'TddNS ¥ SADIAYAS TV.LOLINS| 99
)
00°00S $ 00005 $ SNOANVITIDSIN )
00°€TY°l $ 00°€LS'] $ SWUOAINN £9
00°000°9 $ 00005°S $ 0V LSOd/SDONITIVIN Z9
00005t ¢ 00°00SF $ S394 LIndad 19
00°'000°8 $ 00°000°L $ s394 av1 09
00°000°L1 ¢ 00°000°L1 $ FONVHUNSNI 6
00'000°T $ 00000¢C $ THAVUL® NOLLVONAT ¥ ONINIVIL 85
00'000°L $ 00000L $ 1vSOdSId dITos-01d i
00008 $ 00008 $ FIIAYAS AOVEUVYD 95
0000L'€ $ 00000¢ $ ANOHJITIL 5
00°000'S $ 00000¢€ $ ASNIJIXT 901410 5
00000°L1 $ 00000°LT $ STVOIWAHD INANWLYAYL €5
00000'9 $ 0000s's $ ENE zs
00000°¢1 $ 00000'¢1 $ W %% d LNINdINO3a 1S
00000'€ $ 00°000°¢ $ LNIVI % SUIVdTd 3TOIHIA 05
007005 $ 00008 $ W % ¥ DNIATINg &t
00000°0T $ 0000002 $ SIITddNS-WFO 8
00°000°8S $ 00°000°¢S 3 ALIDRLD3TA - SAILITILN b
00°005°€ $ 00005°€ $ WVIDH0Ud ALAIVS ay
00°000°S¢ $ 00°000°SE $ SAJAYIS TYNOISSIIOU Sy
00°009'6 $ 000096 $ S331sN¥L 40 advod vy
00°000091 $ 00000002 $ FAYISTY 9LV dIMIS tp
%Sl t 00°005°LT $ 00008 $ DONIANNA NOILYIDTYLAd TYNLDV v
84
SAITddNS ¥ STDIAYAS| o
rT-€T £0-77 6
TVYNIJ TVYNIJ $7-£707 LADANA SO HAMAS| 8¢
i€
W 7 3 | 3 [o] 5] | a | v

HIMIS-LINILSIA INTFWIAOUJINT TVHINTD STTIH NVIANI



39

dAMIAS

N (02 987°00) Tomds ‘UONEIIIdIP LNOHLIM Mo yseD 1IN] 26
16
(19°€87°19¢) $ (16'966°5€E) $ uoneroaidap jour moyy yse)) 19N | 06
(00°000'+T) ST $ 00°000'%¢ 3 AVILNO TVLIAVD TVLOL 68
88
8
og
58
000001 $ QNdad ¥amodg ve
00°000°C1 $ NLIDNYLSVYAINI SSVIAL £# NOLLVLS LAl £8
AVILNO TYLIAVD|Z8
18
08
(19°€8T°19€) $ (16'966°11€) $ uwonenaadap s ‘Aepno [eyded at0jaq moy ysed qng| 6.
8.
(96'88T°FS 1) $ (96'899°LST) $ 3214135 JqIP |EIO ], iy
(ECLER'CH) $ (LSTES'LE) 3 15a133U 9214435 142( ol
(€97 15801 1) $ (6L9ci0l1) g Jedrounid 2014135 193] 7
¥I-EL £1-I1 v
N | W | 1 | M | 3 lal o) ] 7] | Y

HAMIAS-LOMNLSIA INFWIAQUdINI TVHINTD STTIH NVIANI




or

soxe) “siad ‘Y[eay ‘3t /uCISIAfEILSP 00'00L°011 $ 00004001 $ SIXVL ANV S1I49Nd9 6€

10°9¥5°9Z¢ $ BLSS6'THT $ SHVIVS TVL1O0LENS| 8¢

183/ (jurUI2E JO 0400 FIn0Ang yats/eaeA; sapnjoul 00°005°LL § 00°861°1S § ADNADNILNOD AYVIVS L€

00°Z08°¢1 § 00Z08°tl $ AHANVLS 9g

SE

ve

€€

%0C 9£'661°91 § ZI601°CI § LNVLSISSV LY0ddNS JALLVILSININGY A3

%00°0F ST'ROL'S § 058LE8 g YOLVNITICO0O ONITTIG ALIMTILY L/d LE

%0T +8'2ZH'61 § 96'T0LSI s LNV.LNNODDV 0t

%0T 8T'L68°61 § t0'66L°81 3 YIDOVNVIA TVHINGD 62

8¢

L2

(%S T woly umop pasnipe) 240 | 89°6€1°S $ 08'8£S°11 b JLL TN NOSY3d ALITLLN 9z

%0t 0T'v58°0T $ 9£5LT61 $ Slueyaol 52

%001 0T'STLYS § 0TSI5SS $ 14O 4gLvm ¥Z

%001 0T 11Z'06 $ 089£9'¢8 § HOSIAYIANS VALV M €2

Aaejes |©101 Jo aFeluadsad zZ

JELVTad ¥ SHIEVIVS) 12

A4 €011 SHSNAJXH| 02

TVNIA TYNI4 PT-€20T LADANT SNOLLVHAJO HALVAA | 6L

8l

(00°080°0%) $ 09 I¥K1TH1 S 091TS 191 $ SHNNIATL TVLOL| L)

9l

Gl

4

€l

45

- $ 00080°C8 $ SH34 NOLLJINNOD L

00°600°y $ 00000C $ LSTYTLNI 0!

09 1¥H°Tl S 09 1#FCI $ ASVIT VNNILNVY JINVL dHLVM 6

00°000°578 § 00000°5TS $ FDVSN NOLLdWNSNOD ¥3.LVM g

00°000°088 $ 00000048 $ JLVY 3svVd JaLvm L

9

SANNIATY| ¢

14

€

ADNHAAAA1A PT-€T £T-7C PT-£207 L3DANE SNOLLVHAJO dILVM|

SHLON TVNII TVNIA b
[s) ] N W 1 =2l 9 | g | v

JALVA-LDIALSIA- INFNIAOUdWI TVHIANAL) STTIH NVIANI

40



08
(I1t7645°16T) $ (81°65T°0F1) $ SASNAIXT HTAO ANNTATY 40O SSTIXJ| 6/ |

CTOFT 1L $ I0ITOEL9'T § BLOBL'TO9T S SASNALXA TVLOL| 4L
00°000°5tS $  00°000°1SS $ NOILVID34ddad) 9L

Sl

000SEEE § 00CLL069 § 00STriso 3 SATTddM1S ® SHOIAYAS 1VIOLENS| vL

£l

zL

* * * * * * 73

0L

00°005 § 0000 s SNOANYTIADSIN 69

00°S79'1 § 006LT'1 $ SIWHOAINN 89

00°000°9 $ 00005'S $ ADVLSOd/SONITIVIN 19

00'008°S $ 0000s‘S s Sg94 LIN¥gd 99

00000'L $ 00°000°L $ SS9 AYOLY YOIV 59

00°000°L1 $  00°000°L1 $ FINVENSNI i)

00°000'S $ 00000°S $ TIAVIL % NOLLVONAF 7 ONINIVYIL €9
00°00S $ 0000 g ADIAYAS IOVEIVD 29 |

00°000°C1 $ 00°000°11 $ INOHdITAL T

00°00T°¢ $ 00°000°C $ ISNIdXT 921440 09

00°000'8 $ 00000V $ STVIIWAHD LNIWLVIUL 65

00'005'9 $ 00000°9 $ TANd - SNIIXT FTIHIA 86

00°000°9 $ 00000°9 9 W % ¥ LNIWJINDA 1S

00°000°€ $ 00000°€ $ N % ¥ - HSNIdXH HTIIHIA 86

00°005°T $ 00°008°T $ W ¥ d ONIdTINd 56

Juswaoe|dar 12131 121eM 10] 000°01S (0°000°ST $ 00°000°'I% $ SHITddNS-WFO ¥
0001 1od g5 uoyw 667 (0°0SS R1T $ 00°05S'8IT $ YILvM NIANIW 40 ISVHDUN €5
00°000°L $  00°000°S $ SVD - SHILITLLN Zs

00°000°0L $ 0000009 $ ALIDILDATE - SALLITILN LS

00°000°¢ $ 0000L°T $ WVEDO0Ud ALIIVS 05

00°005°S¢ $ 00°00S'LY $ SADIAYAS TVNOISSTI0Ud &

46T 00°009°6 $ 000096 $ SAALSNYL 40 AYVOd 8
Ad 158] papud Sunelado 0y 94,07 00°000°00Z $  00'000°091 g STIAYISTY ISVIHINI ALV I
%STH 00°008°LE $ 0000£9¢ g HNIANNT NOILVIDAYdIA TVYNLIV ot
Sy

YT-ET £2-7T SAITddNS ® SADIA TS| vv

TN TVNIA $7-€207 L39ANT SNOILVIAJO HALVM| €

FA 4

€T 068°CY $ 109TLEY $ 8LSSE'E6E $ QALY 1A ¥ SATIVIVS TVLOL| ¥

[s) | | W | il i % Nl o | 8 | ¥

ILVA-LONLSIA- INFNIAOUIIWI TVHIANID) STTIH NVIANI




43

801
(zT005L) $ IL6¥9'E $ £66¢1'6 I§ J3jem ‘uoneraIdap LAOH.LIM Mol YseD 19N|201
201

(6z0sE'eks)  § (L00S8'IpS)  § uoneardap Ul mofs yse) JPN|S0L

(00°000°301) $ = $ 00000801 $ AVILNO TVLIAVD - TY.LOLANS|r0l
colL

201

1LOL

00000°001 $ STAYISTY LDAr0Ud FAIId NVIANI 001

00°000'8 $ YAZATVNY ANIdOTHD 66

86

i6

96

56

AVILNO TVLIdVD| +6

£6

Z6

16

(6z°0se'ckS) § (L00s8’sey) §  wonenaudap sage ‘Aepno [epded arojaq moy ysea qng| 06

68
(BROLL16e) & (68065t6c) & DDIAIIS 1G3P [B10], E

(8TRE0SSS) (€T LOLT9%) TSDIIUL DHAIIS 192 18

(09°zeL'9¢Cs) (99°£88°0£TS) Jediound 3514335 193] 98

(spasnoad puoq woij paa1ada1 ysey) 58

muu.w :Oﬁov::OU 8

pT-€T £2-77 £8

TYNI TVNIA $7-€207 LADANE SNOILVYAJO HALVM| 28

1:]

N | A | 1 M Bios] o ] g I v

HALVA-LOMNMLSIA- INFNIAOULWI TVHANTD) STTIH NVIANI



AGENDA ITEM 11.

Discussion and possible action to approve a
proposal from Lumos & Associates in the amount
of $9,800.00 for Civil Engineering Services for the
South Sunridge Park Dog Park.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/District
Engineer, Tim Russell)

43



Carson City « El Dorado Hills = Fallon = Lake Tahoe = Reno
Foi
L‘x

Carson City
308 N. Curry Street, Suite 200

LUMOS Carson City, Nevada 89703

775.883.7077

February 3, 2023

LA23.008
Chris Johnson, General Manager
Indian Hills General Improvement District
3394 James Lee Park Road #A
Carson City, NV 89705

Re: Proposal for Civil Engineering Services for the South Park Dog Park at South
Sunridge Park in Indian Hills, Nevada

Dear Chris:

Lumos & Associates, Inc. is pleased to provide you with this proposal for Engineering Services for
the Dog Park at South Sunridge Park. The project is located at 980 Parkview Drive in Indian Hills,
Nevada.

Project Un in

We propose the following tasks to assist you with your project based upon the attached concept
prepared in the past:

Proj e

Task 1 — Topographic Survey

To ensure ADA accessibility for the design, a Topographic Survey Map will be created using a
combination of aerial photogrammetry and ground collected survey field points. The project will be
flown at an appropriate elevation to obtain a horizontal scale of 1"=20' with a 1' contour interval
accuracy in accordance to National Map Accuracy Standards for the project area. All existing surface
improvements and visible evidence of utilities will be located within the project area. Conventional
survey methods will be utilized on hard surface areas such as asphalt, concrete and utilities to achieve
a higher degree of horizontal and vertical accuracy. Utilities will be dipped and inverts listed on the

Topographic Map. A digital terrain model, topographic map, and color orthophoto will be generated
and combined in Softdesk Civil 3D 2022 as deliverables for this task.

Horizontal Control for the project will be referenced to the Nevada Coordinate System, West Zone,
NAD83/94 using a local combined scale factor of 1.0002 to establish ground values for the
topographic map. The vertical datum for the project will be referenced to NAVD88. The area to be
mapped will be from back of walk on Mica Drive to back of walking path to back of curb on Parkview
Drive to the south edge of the basketball court.

Task 2 — Dog Park Improvement Plan

This task includes preparation of an Improvement Plan for the South Park Dog Park for review by
IHGID. The scope of work for the proposed dog park includes a new bench and shade structure, ADA
accessibility, new 4’ high fenced area with a double gate entry, new hardscape pathway (including
pavers), two new trees, and a new dog compatible water fountain. The Improvement Plan will be
based upon the Dog Park Site Plan prepared by Lumos in April 2020. A new water service is
anticipated to be required for the proposed dog drinking fountain and will be incorporated into the
plans.

Lt



January 31%, 2023
Page 2

Task 3 — Bidding Assistance

Lumos will be available during the bidding process to answer technical questions and respond to
questions raised by bidders during the bidding period. In addition, all questions and responses will
be documented and provided to IHGID. Work performed under this task will be billed on a time and
materials basis in accordance with our current fee schedule.

Task 4 — Construction Assistance
Lumos will be available to answer questions, coordinate contractor invoicing, process pay requests,
review submittals, conduct periodic walkthroughs of the project during construction, respond to RFI’s,

modify plans, inspections, testing, and prepare record drawings. This task will be T&M and as-needed
basis through IHGID.

Assumptions / Exceptions
Lumos has made the following assumptions in preparation of this proposal:
¢ This proposal does not include permitting as this is viewed as a maintenance project.
e This proposal does not include any technical reports or studies.
s This proposal does not include dry utility design or site lighting design.
e Assumes IHGID staff will modify the irrigation system. This does not include the redesign of
the irrigation system.

Fees
The tasks described in the Scope of Work will be completed for the following fees:

Task Description Fee
Task 1 Topographic Survey Lump Sum $3,500
Task 2 Dog Park Improvement Plan Lump Sum $3,500
Task 3 Bidding Assistance (T&M Estimate) $1,400
Task 4 Construction Assistance (T&M Estimate) $1,400

TOTAL $9,800

Tasks 1 and 2 will be billed as a Lump Sum. Tasks 3 and 4 will be billed on a Time and Materials
basis in accordance with our current fee schedule (we have provided an estimate of the time under
Tasks 3 and 4 but this could change based on the level of IHGID involvement (especially for
construction assistance). If this proposal is acceptable to the IHGID Board, please authorize us to
proceed on the above tasks under our existing contract. Any additional services requested but not
covered by this Scope of Work can be provided by an amendment to this proposal.

Lumos and Associates, Inc. will send monthly progress billings on this project. The amount of these
billings will be based upon the percentage of work completed. The terms are ‘Due Upon Receipt’
and accounts are past due after 30 days. Accounts over 30 days old will be subject to interest at the
rate of 1 2% per month and such collection action as may be necessary to collect the account. In
addition, a “Stop Work Order” may be issued on past due accounts. In this case, no further work
will be performed until the account is brought current.

www.Lumoslinc.com

e



January 31, 2023
Page 3

Thank you again for allowing Lumos and Associates to provide you with this proposal. Please do not
hesitate to call me at (775) 883-7077 if you have questions.

Sincerely,

L

Tim Russell, P.E.?W.R.S. Collin Sturge, P.E.
Engineering Director — District Engineer Senior Engineer

CC: Cami L. Jackson, P.E. — Project Manager

www.LumosInc.com

Yo



0202 [y S3IVIOESSY §

-Medboa o SOMWNT

g, O HILYM HLIM
o fJ.fz_ﬁz:o"_ M3N /4

s

- , Sl Rl oo,
(3) NOILVLS 900

Smstingr-
Ad1NT

J1vO 379N0a

() 33xL

-\ 9AlUQ
MaInIEd




PROPOSAL  ARTISTIC

- FENCE CO., INC..

Cond. License #7798A

[] 480 Morill Avenue &4740 US Hi 50 East : :
Reno, Nevada 89512 Carson cny.gr;rvmeﬂg?oi-ms = m’ﬁﬁﬁ?w& gt?m(
(775) 786-6002 {775) 882-4665 (775) 623-8678
FAX (775) 786-7892 FAX (775) 862-7847 FAX (775) 6238568 ?
submittedto____(Rohect siches (| Guecia, Phone No. /=A% -6 1401 338
For Propefty at -S!.Jlﬂ. l“;ﬁé:',c_._, M - Park view . Lt vz o<
WE PROPOSE TO:
[ INSTALL AT YOUR PROPERTY A FENCE .
E]_MATERIALS ONLY F.0.8. OUR YARD 9 manse ltins, rI9®3 wail, com
OR DO THE FOLLOWING DESGRIBED WORK:
STEEL
Length | Hetght O R R P O IO O SO B . S —I-:I:--:ﬁ-_t N O O O 5% i s
37| 4. ,J(A.\ G2 0 T I I ?
s D ! | !
%z 5 SR Wt it VY Ly 5 ) ,/ s e __! = .}_ P IR / - ..
Walk Drive . [ IS A S {_-1 ! f T ORI e
Gate | Gate NI P (/ BN S T R U Y N '";T"' 114 - .
i
1_1{1 / TS RTINS et Ji"""';f""* :"I )
i S T 5 I Lo E L R P e i e L
i i
WireGa. | // _ab g bolodhocel ¢
—— | ¥ t I i ™ i S
Torminal | 23 | L |/ .
% _— L} R TN N W _L__.f.__._#i. S - A
Line Posts 5"'"’4' I TR D SRV PO T P TR NPERS R LI P i. A R e [ S R ___i :}‘('
! A '
Top Fail S T | O : // "'L#"i _._,kﬁ__i__m,}_ =
WOOD alo _7?'-' . - 93' ) !, ___i_._ // E i_ K ..'E..__ll.._ -.-.‘!._ !.. 4. ]
— R o o e [ gl saadizni] FHASA P M L _‘__
Avaflsbie et ) PO P N R W | ;Z.,_H..L*L 4 A IT‘ 1.1
: { I ; -/| ] ‘l
g -4 =l - \ : e :/ | )’%’ﬁ‘miskﬂd 75,'3' |3
e N VNP O S _i____;L_._.__._L_“; Doyl - audaog | |
o LR R T sk s e st e £
i ) . +
Alternate | o TP PRS Cewevs f s _f% g f:i:‘ﬁ_ll' i\ : i_;
: [ NOT. Recomend 45 ;
= IBie il i N ey pail GA“#’G!I g h o

PAYMENT N FULL DUE UPON COMPLETION
PERMIT NOT INCLUDED UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED Agreed Price _—
WE PROPOSE 1o furnish and install fencing materlals (or materials only) in accordance with the conditions and ~ instalied &) //, 78.3.&
terms as listed. The fence line and grade are to be located by the property owner, CUSTOMER ASSUMES B) 17367 °°
FULL. RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOCATION OF FENCE and agrees to, at customer’s sole expense, dafend and £

hold Artiatic Fence Co., Inc. harmless respecting claims of encroachment, claims of damage to underground
facilities, and/or any other claims brought on account of the wark herein above described, including sprinkler systems.
Price of installaion is based on the entire job betng done at one time. If on account of changes mada by TERMS: HALF DOWN

purchaser the crew has to make more than ong trip, the extra charge covering such expense will be made. m ON COHP‘L!TIUH
Quotation subjact to change after /O days.

By M LQ”Z-_;!!‘? LSS s Accepted By L/g

mmm;mnalmdlﬂomonmm
pate 3 ~A D X3 N Date




Finest LLC _
m
3150 Carmine St, STE A Estimate

Carson City, NV 89706
775-883-1117
FinestCarson@gmail.com

ADDRESS
Robert Garcia
ESTIMATE # DATE EXPIRATION DATE
3322 03/21/2023 03/28/2023
SALES REP JOB LOCATION
James IHGID Dog Park - ballpark estim
ACTIVITY QTy RATE AMOUNT
Privacy chain link with slats 1 12,544.05 12,544.05

Materials and installation

370" of 4' chain link fence with green privacy slats and two gates.

2-3/8 sch 20 posts, 8' on center setin 2' of concrete.

1-5/8 sch 20 top rail.

75 ViewGuard, 9 gauge, 4” Diamond galvanized chain link, see attached for details.
Two 5" walk gate on a 2-3/8 posts.

1-7/8 gate frame.

Materials are subject to flaws such as scratches. shrinking, SUBTOTAL 12,544.05

dings, warping, splitting and knots which are beyond our TAX 0.00

control. We are not responsible for damage to vegetation, TOTAL $1 2 544.05
, L]

conduit, landscape, wiring, waterlines, sprinkler lines, or septic
lines. Property lines must be properly marked by the property
owner. Building permits are not included in this estimate unless
otherwise indicated. Warranty does not cover mistreatment or
acts of god. Estimate is for completing the job as described
above, based on our evaluation, and does not include material
price increases, additional labor or materials which may be
required should unforeseen issues arise. A 50% deposit is
required prior to scheduling. Any materials used in the
performance of this work remain the property of Finest LLC
until all sums due ars paid in full. A 1.5% monthly interest
charge will be assessed on unpaid balances. Credit cards will
be assessed a fee of 3.5%. Agreement of terms by paying
deposit and/or sighing contract.

Accepted By Accepted Date

Finesl LLC provides a one year warranty on workmanship performed by our company. L/ q
We have a policy of completing projects in the order received. Acts of God or weather could necessitate some delays.



AGENDA ITEM 12.

Discussion and possible action to approve a
proposal from Lumos and Associates in the
amount of $19,700.00 for additional professional
services related to the Indian Drive sewer lining
design.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/District
Engineer, Tim Russell)

50



! Carson City - Fallon - Lake Tahoe « Reno
.

Carson City
308 N. Curry Street, Suite 200

LUM D S Carson City, Nevada 89703

775.883.7077

March 28, 2023 LA21.714

Chris Johnson, District Manager

Indian Hills General Improvement District
3394 James Lee Park Road #A

Carson City, NV 89705

Re: Proposal for Additional Professional Services
Indian Drive Sewer Lining Design

Dear Chris:

Lumos & Associates, Inc. (Lumos) is pleased to provide you with this proposal for additional
engineering and related services to modify/redesign the sewer improvements associated with the
Indian Drive Reconstruction and Waterline Project and re-bid the project.

Project Understanding

The proposed project is located on Indian Drive from Mica Drive to Vassar Street and Vassar Street
to Princeton Avenue. More generally, the project is located entirely within Section 18, Township 14N,
Range 20E M.D.B. & M. The project scope includes water and sewer improvements, along with
surface rehabilitation.

In January of 2022 (during the initial design of the project), sewer video was collected and a sewer
evaluation was prepared to assess the condition of the existing sewer main within the project area
(attached to this proposal). The sewer evaluation determined deficiencies including low velocities,
aged mains that are in poor condition, and segments of the existing main are located within private
property. Based on the evaluation, IHGID and Lumos decided to move forward with Alternative 48
(presented in the evaluation), which included new sewer main installation within the Right of Way
(R.0.W.), which addressed all deficiencies noted with the existing sewer.

In February/March of 2023 the project went out to public bid for Contractors, with bids received on
March 6", 2023. The result of that bid indicated that the water and surface rehabilitation costs were
as anticipated, however, the sewer improvements were significantly more than anticipated. Upon
further investigation by Lumos (with the Contractor that bid the project and others that evaluated
bidding the project), it was determined that the high price was a direct result of the new sewer main
installation within the R.O.W. and the corresponding depth to which it would have to be installed.

After further discussion between IHGID and Lumos, the water and surface rehabilitation scope will
remain as designed, but the scope of sewer improvements will be re-designed to match Alternative
1 (presented in the sewer evaluation), which includes relining the existing sewer main with lateral
spot repairs as needed. This decision was made after coordination with Contractors, and the
anticipated cost-savings that will be achieved by relining the existing main, rather than a complete
new installation.

We propose the following tasks to assist you with your project:



March 28, 2023
Page 2

Project Scope
Task 4B — Sewer Redesign & Permitting (additional scope)

The additional scope added for this task will include further evaluation of the existing sewer video to
determine an appropriate scope of work for re-lining the existing main, along with lateral spot repair
as needed. It will also include coordination with local sewer lining Contractors to determine the
appropriate means of repair is incorporated into the design.

Lumos will then incorporate the sewer re-design into the existing construction plans, specifications,
and Contract Documents for IHGID’s review, and to be provided to Contractor’s for re-bid of the
project.

Task 5 ~ Rebidding and Construction Assistance (additional scope)

The additional scope added to this task includes Lumos time to re-bid the plans, conduct a pre-bid
meeting, respond to RFI's, issue addendums, conduct the bid opening, tabulate and evaluate the
bids, and provide a recommendation of award to the City.

mptions / Ex ion.
Lumos has made the following assumptions in preparation of this proposal:

» Fees are in addition to fees from proposal prepared in July 2021, and amendment from
January 2022.

o Assumed savings by re-lining the existing sewer (rather than new install) is preliminary and
based on initial coordination with Contractors. Lumos does not control market conditions and
can't guarantee Contractor’s final bids.

Fees
The tasks described in the Scope of Work will be completed for the following fees:
Task Number Description Fee
Task 4B Sewer Civil Design and Permitting (additional scope) S 14,800.00
Task 5 Bidding and Construction Assistance (additional scope) § 4,900.00
Total $ 19,700.00

Tasks 4B and 5 are lump sum, with the amounts shown in this amendment to be added to the existing
fees. Lumos and Associates will be happy to amend this proposal as necessary.

If this proposal is acceptable to the board, please authorize us to proceed under our existing contract.
Any additional services requested but not covered by this Scope of Work can be provided by an
amendment to this proposal. Lumos and Associates, Inc. will send monthly progress billings on this
project.

Formal board approval will authorize Lumos to proceed with this work.

www.LumosInc.com



March 28, 2023
Page 3

Thank you again for allowing Lumos and Associates to provide you with this proposal. Please do not
hesitate to call me at (775) 883-7077 if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Collin Sturge, P.E. Tim Russell, P.E.
Senior Engineer Director of Engineering — District Engineer
Attachments:

1. Indian Hills GID Sanitary Sewer Evaluation: Dated 1/7/2022

www.LumosInc.com



Carson City
308 N. Curry Street, Suite 200

LUM OS Carson City, Nevada 89703

775.883.7077

!‘ Carson City « Fallon « Lake Tahoe « Reno
1'!,5"\-

January 7, 2022
JN 10500.001

Prepared for: Technical Memorandum

Chris Johnson, District Manager Revision 1

Indian Hills General Improvement District

3394 James Lee Park Road #A

Carson City, NV 89705

Prepared by:
Mara Quiroga, P.E.
Tim Russell, P.E.
Lumos & Associates

Subject: Indian Hills GID Sanitary Sewer Evaluation

LD)
01/07/22

Introduction

Lumos & Associates has been contracted to design the reconstruction of Indian Drive in the Indian
Hills General Improvement District (IHGID). Also associated with the roadway improvements will be
the replacement of the existing asbestos concrete water lines. Prior to designing the road and water
replacement, Lumos was contracted to evaluate the existing sewer main on Indian Drive to determine
if any replacements or rehabilitation should be included with the road/water project. The 12-inch
sewer main in Indian Drive has been identified as having flow challenges due to aged infrastructure,
flat slopes, and the large flow contribution from the northwest quadrant of the District {north of Mica
Drive and west of highway 39) and approximately two thirds of Sunridge. The sewer main also
crosses through multiple private residential properties with or without easements. This memo
provides an evaluation of the options for replacing, rehabilitating, or relocating the existing main.

Sewer Flows

Monitored Existing Flows

In order to determine existing flows in the project area, Lumos contracted with Utility System
Sciences & Software to install flow meters in two manholes over the course of one week. Figure 1
shows the location of the project area and the monitored manholes.

Table 1 shows the resuits of the flow monitoring in manholes A and C, as identified in Figure 1.
Manhole A represents the flows from the northwest quadrant of the District, while manhole C
represents the full flows on Indian Drive. The difference between the flows is the contribution from
Sunridge. The peaking factor was calculated as the peak flow divided by the average flow, as the
areas are residential and don't change seasonally. The maximum measured flow was utilized in the
analysis as the peak design flow.

L:\LAProj\10500.001 - Indian Dr. Waterline & Road Rehab\Civil\Sewer Evaluation\Sewer Evaluation Memo.docx L/



January 2022
Revision 1
Page 2

Table 1: Flow Monitoring Results

Average Flow (gpm) 74.13 102.25

Max (Peak) Flow {gpm) 150.96 166.59
Min Flow (gpm) 25.78 32.93
Peaking Factor 2.04 1.63

Estimated Existing Flows

The flow monitoring was performed upstream of the Indian Drive project area to allow for the best
contributing area data from Sunridge and the northwest quadrant, in the event flow splitting becomes
necessary to improve operational conditions in Indian Drive. Along Indian Drive and Gregory Court,
additional homes contribute to the sewer main. These flows were estimated using the criteria detailed
in Table 2 and applied to the tributary nodes in the sewer model.

Table 2: Sewer Generation in Project Area

Additional Homes 38
Average Use (gpd/home) [1] 250
Average Flow (gpd) 9,500
Peaking Factor! 1.63
Peak Flow (gpm) 10.75

1 Peaking factor as determined in Table 1. The lower peaking factor was assumed to
conservatively represent worst case scenario for minimum velocity. Additionally, the
average of 250 gpd/home is estimated to be high, thus giving a conservative value for
overall flow contribution.

Design Criteria
Design and analysis criteria for the sewer system are based upon the Douglas County Design Criteria
and Improvement Standards (DCIS) [1] and detailed below.

Pipe sizing: peak flows
Minimum pipeline diameter: 8-inch
Minimum depth of cover for sewer mains: 72-inches
Minimum velocity: 2.0 feet per second (fps) when flowing full
Maximum velocity: 15 fps
Manning’s roughness coefficient *n”; 0.013
Pipe material: SDR 35 PVC pipe
Maximum depth of flow (depth/diameter: d/D): 0.5 for pipes through 15-inch diameter
Minimum pipe slope:

o 8-inch pipe: 0.40%

o 10-inch pipe: 0.30%

o 12-inch pipe: 0.22%

cogoQCcocoQoOO

www.LumosInc.com



January 2022
Revision 1
Page 3

Evaluation of Alternatives

Utilizing the flow data and survey information for the existing sewer manholes on and downstream
of Indian Drive, we evaluated 5 alternatives to assess the existing sewer on Indian Drive and what
(if any) improvements are needed. Additionally, sewer inspection videos performed in 2016 were
reviewed for the existing mains and the resulting data was included in the analysis. Where applicable,
the alternatives detailed below were modeled in Innovyze InfoSWMM modeling software to analyze
capacity and velocity within the existing pipes.

Existing Conditions
The existing conditions were analyzed to determine the extent of the operationa! issues. Table 3
summarizes the results of the analysis.

Table 3: Existing Condition Modeling Results

1-2 Indian Dr. 12 0.35 0.12 1.37 1.58
2-3 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.18 1.59 1.93
3-4 Indian Dr. 12 0.41 0.08 1.20 1.28
4-5 Indian Dr. 12 0.32 0.15 1.52 1.76
5-6 Indian Dr. 12 0.26 0.29 1.91 2.44
6-7 Indian Dr. 12 0.32 0.16 1.55 1.82
7-8 Indian Dr. 12 0.28 0.25 1.82 2.27
8-15 Vassar Dr. 12 0.27 0.28 1.90 2.40
9-5 Gregory Ct. 8 0.19 0.54 0.65 2.54
10-9 Gregory Ct. 8 0.02 0.58 0.69 2.64
11-10 Gregory Ct. 8 0.01 3.91 1.11 6.92
Design - 0.50 max 2.0 min
Criteria

Based on the model analysis results in Table 3 and the sewer videos, the following deficiencies were
noted.

1) At peak and full flows, minimum velocities are not met due to flat pipe slopes.

2) Based on a review of the sewer videos, in general, the mains were in fair to good condition.
However, most lateral connections were in poor to fair condition, and there is substantial root
growth in multiple main locations. Attachment 2 provides a summary of the sewer video
review. Due to the age of the pipes and defects found in the sewer infrastructure, it is
recommended the main be replaced.

3) Segments of the sewer line are located in back and side yards of private residences without
large enough easements for access and maintenance. In one case, the sewer line appears to
be located underneath or within feet of the building foundation.

To address the deficiencies identified, the following alternatives were considered. The attached
figures illustrate the existing conditions and proposed alternatives.

www.LumosInc.com



January 2022
Revision 1
Page 4

Alternative 1. Lining and Lateral Spot Repair

This alternative proposes installing a liner in the existing mains and repairing existing lateral
connections where required. The liner would allow for the current pipe diameter to stay essential the
same, but improve the conditions of the main. The flow conditions are equivalent to the existing
results seen in Table 3.

Pros Cons
o Addresses deficiency 2 (pipe condition) + Does not address deficiencies 1
e Low cost (minimum velocity) or 3 (located in
private property)

Alternative 2: Replace Main in Place

This alternative proposes the replacement of the sewer main in the existing alignment along Indian
Drive through pipe bursting, and reconnection of the laterals. This alternative would improve the
conditions of the sewer main piping, but results would be consistent with the existing conditions seen
in Table 3. The new installation would be at the existing slope and therefore would not increase
cleansing velocity or mitigate the right-of-way concerns.

Pros Cons
e Addresses deficiency 2 (pipe condition) » Does not address deficiencies 1
(minimum velocity) or 3 (located in
private property)
e Similar result as Alternative 1 but at a
higher cost

Alternative 3A: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive to Right-of-Way

This alternative involves replacing the existing main in Indian Drive to steepen slopes where possible,
realign to place the main in right-of-way, and replace the deteriorating mains at the same size as the
existing.

Due to upstream and downstream invert elevation constraints, the highest achievable slope is 0.13%
on average along the main. Without a larger scale reconstruction cutside of the project area or
installation of a lift station, slopes cannot be increased enough to meet Douglas County design
standards or to achieve cleansing velocity at peak flow. Slopes have been increased as much as
possible to improve operational conditions. This alternative also proposes abandoning the main and
manholes within private property along Indian Drive and constructing main and manholes within
right-of-way. Table 4 details the results of modeling this alternative.




January 2022

Revision 1
Page 5
Table 4: Alternative 3A Modeling Results
1-2 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.18 1.60 1.93
2-3 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.18 1.60 1.93
3-4 Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.18 1.60 1.93
4-5 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.20 1.68 2.03
5-6 Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.18 1.61 1.93
6-12 Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.18 1.63 1.93
12-13  Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.18 1.63 1.93
13-8 Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.19 1.64 1.98
Design - 0.50 max 2.0 min
Criteria
Pros Cons
¢ Addresses deficiencies 2 (pipe condition) ¢ Does not address deficiency 3 on
and part of 3 (located in private property Gregory Court

along Indian Drive}

¢ Increases velocities to almost address
deficiency 1 (minimum velocity) at full
flow

Alternative 3B: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive and Gregory Court to Right-of-Wa
This option includes the improvements of Alternative 3A with the addition of realigning the main
serving Gregory Court to right-of-way. However, information on lateral locations is not available for
the Gregory Court mains. Further exploration is required to determine whether the reconnection of
laterals into the right-of-way would prove too cost prohibitive or unfeasible for this option.

Table 5: Alternative 3B Modeling Results

1-2 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.18 1.60 1.93
2-3 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.18 1.59 1.93
3-4 Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.18 1.60 1.93
4-6 Indian Dr. 12 0.31 0.18 1.62 1.93
6-12 Indian Dr. 12 0.32 0.17 1.58 1.87
12-13 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.21 1.70 2.08
13-8 Indian Dr. 12 0.30 0.20 1.69 2.03
10-14 Gregory Ct. 8 0.01 1.58 0.74 4.35
14-12  Gregory Ct. 8 0.01 1.48 0.94 4.21
Design - 0.50 max 2.0 min
Criteria

www.LumosInc.com



January 2022
Revision 1
Page 6

o
A
C
3
]
=)
=
0

= Addresses deficiencies 2 (pipe o Higher cost than Alternative 3A
condition) and 3 (located in private ¢ Uncertainty with lateral locations on
property) Gregory Court mains requires further
+ Increases velocities to almost address exploration
deficiency 1 (minimum velocity) at full
flow

Alternative 4A. Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive and Vassar Street to Right-of-Wa
This alternative proposes replacing the existing sewer main along Indian Drive and Vassar Street.
Replacing the additional segment of pipe within Vassar Street allows for steeper slopes and higher
velocities, but requires additional road repairs outside the scope of the Indian Drive rehabilitation
project.

Table 6: Alternative 4A Modeling Results

1-2 Indian Dr. 12 0.28 0.21 1.68 2.08
2-3 Indian Dr. 12 0.28 0.21 1.70 2,08
3-4 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.72 2.13
4-5 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.72 2.13
5-6 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.21 1.72 2.08
6-12 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.73 2.13
12-13  Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.21 1.72 2.08
13-8 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.73 2.13
8-15 Vassar St. 8 0.29 0.21 1.72 2.08
Design - 0.50 max 2.0 min
Criteria
Pros Cons
e Addresses deficiencies 1 {(minimum » High cost, including additional road
velocity) at full flow, 2 (pipe condition) repairs on Vassar St.
and part of 3 (located in private « Does not address deficiency 3 on
property along Indian Dr.) Gregory Court

Alternative 4B: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive, Gregory Court. and Vassar Street to Right-of-
Way

This alternative includes the improvements of Alternative 4A along Indian Drive and Vassar street,
with the addition of replacing the main serving Gregory Court and realigning the main to be within
right-of-way. This alternative presents the same issues as Alternative 3B regarding unknown lateral
locations in Gregory Court.

www.LumosInc.com

=



January 2022

Revision 1
Page 7
Table 7: Alternative 4B Modeling Results
1-2 Indian Dr. 12 0.28 0.21 1.68 2.08
2-3 Indian Dr. 12 0.28 0.21 1.70 2.08
3-4 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.72 2.13
4-6 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.72 2.13
6-12 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.72 2.13
12-13  Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.21 1.72 2.08
13-8 Indian Dr. 12 0.29 0.22 1.73 2.13
8-15 Vassar St. 12 0.29 0.21 1.72 2.08
10-14 Gregory Ct. 8 0.01 1.58 0.74 4.35
14-12 Gregory Ct. 8 0.01 1.65 0.98 4.45
Design - 0.50 max 2.0 min
Criteria
Pros Cons
s Addresses deficiencies 1 (minimum + Highest cost
velocity) at full flow, 2 {pipe condition) o Uncertainty with lateral locations on
and 3 (located in private property) Gregory Court mains requires further
exploration

Alternative 5: No Improvements
This alternative proposes no change or construction within the sewer main or lateral connections as

part of the Indian Drive rehabilitation project. The results would be equivalent to the existing model
conditions seen in Table 3 suffering from low cleansing velocity, right-of-way concerns, and
deteriorating main locations and laterals.

Pros Con
¢ No additional cost » Does not address any deficiencies

N

Cost Comparison

Approximate costs were determined for comparison purposes between the alternatives. The cost
estimates are highly conceptual and intended to provide guidance in decision making, and do not
accurately represent construction costs. A comparison of costs for all alternatives can be found in
Table 8. These values represent the additional cost of sewer improvements above the costs
associated with the planned rehabilitation of the Indian Drive roadway and water mains.

0



January 2022
Revision 1
Page 8

Table 8: Comparison of Conceptual Costs

Alternative 1:Lining and Lateral Spot Repair

Alternative 2: Replace Main in Place

Alternative 3A: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive to
Right-of-Way

Alternative 3B: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive and
Gregory Court to Right-of-Way

Alternative 4A: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive and
Vassar Street to Right-of-Way

Alternative 4B: Replace/Realign Main in Indian Drive,
Gregory Court, and Vassar Street to Right-of-Way
Alternative 5: No Improvements

References

1] Douglas County, Design Criteria and Improvement Standards, June 2017.

$492,000
$510,000

$357,000
$470,000
$497,000

$585,000
$0

<https://plcdndstatic. civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_12493019/File/Community%20Development/Engineering/DE

C2108_DCDCIS_Part%2011%20Complete%202020.pdf>

Attachments
Attachment 1: Figures
Attachment 2: Sewer Video Review

www.LumosInc.com



LEGEND

12" EXISTING SEWER MAIN
10" EXISTING SEWER MAIN
8" EXISTING SEWER MAIN
EXISTING SEWER LATERAL
EXISTING MANHOLE
POTENTIAL PROJECT AREA

MANHOLE B MANHOLE A

MH-1 e .
I 95} MICA DRIVE & )

- MANHOLE C
MH-2

MH-3

+RITE LANE

& ASSOCIATES
308 N CURRY ST, STE 200
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703
PH. (T75) 883-7077 FAX {775) 883-7114

MH-8

VASSAR STREET

INDIAN HILLS GID Date: JAN 2022

Scale: 1" =200'

EXISTING SEWER SYSTEM Job No: 10500.001

DOUGLAS COUNTY FIGURE 1



LEGEND

EXISTING SEWER MAIN (QUTSIDE
PROJECT AREA)

MANHOLE A
8" EXISTING SEWER MAIN MANHOLE B ®/— ’
EXISTING SEWER LATERAL MH-1 g e =
o I
EXISTING MANHOLE ¥ mcaprve &
NEW MAIN

NEW MANHOLE MANHOLE C
REPLACE MAIN MH-2

REPLACE/REHAB MANHOLE

REMOVE/ABANDON MAIN
REMOVE/ABANDON MANHOLE

MH-3

AZURITE LANE

MH-8

VASSAR STREET

INDIAN HILLS GID Date: JAN 2022

LUMOS ALTERNATIVE 3A: REPLACE AND REALIGN | scae: 1= = 150
e e IN INDIAN DRIVE JobNo:  10500.001

308 N CURRY §T., $TE 200 SR 2
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 69703
PH_(775) 883-7077 FAX (T75) 883-7114 DOUGLAS COUNTY




LEGEND
EXISTING SEWER MAIN (QUTSIDE

PROJECT AREA) MANH
* EXISTI
8" EXISTING SEWER MAIN MANHOLE B ©/_
A\

EXISTING SEWER LATERAL MH-1

LE A
S

O
3 e f's"\
EXISTING MANHOLE MICA DRIVE et =

NEW MAIN

NEW MANHOLE MANHOLE C
REPLACE MAIN MH-2

REPLACE/REHAB MANHOLE
REMOVE/ABANDON MAIN
REMOVE/ABANDON MANHOLE

| 23 |

| —MH-3

oo

AZURITE LANE

EAIHé%IVI
: (72)

MH-8

VASSAR STREET

INDIAN HILLS GID Date: JAN 2022

MOS ALTERNATIVE 3B: REPLACE AND REALIGN | scale: 1= 150
& ASSDCIATES IN INDIAN DRIVE AND GREGORY COURT | JeNe: 10500001

308 N CURRY ST, STE 200 FIGURE 3
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703
PH._ (T75) B53-7077 FAX (T75) 883.7114 DOUGLAS COUNTY NEVADA




LEGEND

EXISTING SEWER MAIN (QUTSIDE
PROJECT AREA) MANHOLE A
o |
\

8" EXISTING SEWER MAIN MANHOLE B
MH-1

®

EXISTING SEWER LATERAL
EXISTING MANHOLE
NEW MAIN

MICA DRIVE

NEW MANHOLE MANHOLE C
MH-2

REPLACE MAIN
REPLACE/REHAB MANHOLE
REMOVE/ABANDON MAIN
REMOVE/ABANDON MANHOLE

AZURITE LANE

MH-8

8-15 wvaSSAR STREET

INDIAN HILLS GID Date: JAN 2022

LUMOS ALTERNATIVE 4A: REPLACE AND REALIGN | scate: "= 150
IN INDIAN DRIVE AND VASSAR STREET | JobNo:  10500.001

S ASSOCIATES
308 N CURRY ST, STE 200 FIGURE 4
NEVADA

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89703
PH. (775) B83-7077 FAX, (775) 883-T114 DOUGLAS COUNTY




LEGEND
EXISTING SEWER MAIN (OUTSIDE

PROJECT AREA) MANHOLE A

8" EXISTING SEWER MAIN R EITETS (9/_ l

EXISTING SEWER LATERAL MH-1
3 "”5\

EXISTING MANHOLE

NEW MAIN C
NEW MANHOLE MANHOLE C
MH-2

®

MICA DRIVE

REPLACE MAIN
REPLACE/REHAB MANHOLE
REMOVE/ABANDON MAIN
REMOVE/ABANDON MANHOLE

MH-8

8-15 VASSAR STREET

INDIAN HILLS GID Date: JAN 2022

e ALTERNATIVE 4B: REPLACE AND REALIGN [ scale: 1= 150
S ASSCLATES IN INDIAN DR, VASSAR ST, & GREGORY CT |JeoNo: 10500001

308 N CURRY ST., STE 200 FIGURE 5
NEVADA

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 85703
PH. {775) B83-7077 FAX (775} 883.7114 DOUGLAS COUNTY




Sewer Video Review

Pipe 1-2
Upstream: MH-1 (MH IN5-1)
Rim to Invert: 73"
Downstream: MH-2 (MH IN6)
Rim to Invert: 73"
Direction of survey: Upstream
Pipe Diameter: 12"
Pipe Material: Concrete?
Total Length: 72.8'
General Comments:

¢ Pipe in fair condition

s No visible cracks or roots
Lateral 1:
Distance: 68.2’
Entrance: 10 o'clock
Material: HDPE
Diameter: 8”
Condition: Good

Pipe 2-3

Upstream: MH-2 (MH IN6)

Rim to Invert: 73"

Downstream: MH-3 (MH IN7)

Rim to Invert: 102"

Direction of survey: Downstream

Pipe Diameter: 12"

Pipe Material: Concrete?

Total Length: 344.5

General Comments:
¢ Pipe in good condition
e No visible cracks or roots
o Apparent sag 130"-155

Lateral 1:

Distance: 117.4

Entrance: 10 o'clock

Material: Concrete

Diameter: 8"

Condition: Fair

Lateral 2:

Distance: 124.3

Entrance: 3 oclock

Material: Concrete

Diameter: 8"

Condition: Fair

Lateral 3:

o7



Distance: 159.5
Entrance: 9 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 8" e .
Condition: Fair gl 10 SOMHCINT
Lateral 4: B ET s
Distance: 167.7' ; o :
Entrance: 3 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Poor
Lateral 5:

Distance: 224.7'
Entrance: 11 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair
Lateral 6:

Distance: 232.3’
Entrance: 3 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Poor
Lateral 7:

Distance: 279.3'
Entrance: 10 o’clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair
Lateral 8:

Distance: 294.6’
Entrance: 2 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair

Pipe 3-4
Upstream: MH-3 (MH IN7)
Rim to Invert: 102"
Downstream: MH-4 (MH IN8)
Rim to Invert: 154"
Direction of survey: Downstream
Pipe Diameter: 12"
Pipe Material: Concrete?
Total Length: 208.8’
General Comments:
¢ Pipe in fair condition
¢ No visible cracks or roots



MHUIN?
5/2572016

Lateral 1:

Distance: 13.2'
Entrance: 3 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6”
Condition: Poor
Lateral 2:

Distance: 77.4
Entrance: 11 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Poor
Lateral 3:

Distance: 79.3'
Entrance: 2 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6”
Condition: Fair
Lateral 4:

Distance: 134.7
Entrance: 10 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair
Lateral S:

Distance: 141’
Entrance: 2 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair
Lateral 6:

Distance: 197.5
Entrance: 11 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6”
Condition: Fair

Pipe 4-5
Upstream: MH-4 (MH IN8)
Rim to Invert: 154"
Downstream: MH-5 (MH IN9)
Rim to Invert: 163"
Direction of survey: Downstream
Pipe Diameter: 12"
Pipe Material: Concrete?
Total Length: 127.7
General Comments:

e Pipe in fair condition

MH 1NB
5,25/2016




e No visible cracks

o Prevalent buildups along bottom of pipe

* Heavy root growth at end of pipe in manhole
Lateral 1:
Distance: 61.5'
Entrance: 2 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair HikiLT—.
Lateral 2: 3
Distance: 89.8'
Entrance: 11 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Poor

Pipe 5-6
Upstream: MH-5 (MH INS)
Rim to Invert: 163" i
Downstream: MH-6 (MH IN10) 672572015
Rim to Invert: 172" i h
Direction of survey: Downstream
Pipe Diameter: 12"
Pipe Material: Concrete?
Total Length: 56.0°
General Comments:

* Roots growing in starting manhole

¢ No visible cracks —

¢ Buildup and sag 35-45’ MHETn IR 100 I mi‘iéry.'ég
Lateral 1: Yo
Distance: 2.3’ :
Entrance: 2 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6”
Condition: Fair
Lateral 2:
Distance: 37.5’
Entrance: 11 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair

Pipe 6-7

Upstream: MH-6 (MH IN10)

Rim to Invert: 172"
Downstream: MH-7 (MH IN11)
Rim to Invert: -

Direction of survey: Downstream

10



Pipe Diameter: 12"
Pipe Material: Concrete?
Total Length: 225
General Comments:
¢ No visible signs of cracks
s Roots at Lateral 1
¢ Pipe in fair condition MR IHLD
Lateral 1: 57252016
Distance; 53.1°
Entrance: 2 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Poor, heavy plant debris
Lateral 2:
Distance: 132.2'
Entrance: 10 o'clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 6"
Condition: Fair
Lateral 3:
Distance: 213.9'
Entrance: 10 o’clock
Material: Concrete
Diameter: 8"
Condition: Fair

Pipe 7-8

Upstream: MH-7 (MH IN11)
Rim to Invert: -
Downstream: MH-8 (MH V2)
Rim to Invert: 156"

Direction of survey: Upstream
Pipe Diameter: 12"

Pipe Material: Concrete?
Total Length: 190.6'

General Comments:

Unknown laterals — full video not available

HHE

N

i)
17




Indian Hills General Improvement District

Indian Drive Reconstruction & Utility Replacement Project
Preliminary Cost Estimate (Sewer Re-Lining)

Date: March 28, 2023

/A

LUMQOS

10500.001
Bid Item No, Description IUniisJ Quantity] SNC Unit Price | SNC Total
General
1 Maobilization and Demobllization Ls 1 $111,232 $111,232
2 Traffic Control LS 1 $75,000 475,000
3 SWPPP / Dust Control Ls 1 $5,000 $5,000
4 Potholing LS 1 $23,000 $23,000
General Total $214,232
Surface Rehabilitation
5 Install 3° AC on 9" Pulverized 5F 66,000 $5.65 $372,900
6 Permanent Patch Over Sewer SF 4,400 $2.50 $33,000
? Striping LS 1 $5,500 $5,500
8 Replace Survey Monuments EA 9 $2,400 $21,600
9 Sldewalk IsF 4,050 $25 $101,250
10 Curh & Gutter LF B840 $85 $71,400
11 Valley Gutter & Apron [SF 2,450 $30 $73,500
12 ADA Ramps IEA 8 $4,200 $33,600
Surface Rehabllitation Total $712,750|
Sanitary Sewer Improvements
13 Root Removal in Existing Sewer LS 1 $25,000 $25,000
14 Re-Line Ex. 8" Sewer LF 350 $225 $78,750
15 Re-Line Ex. 12" Sewer LF 1,875 $250 $468,750
16 Install Coating in 48" Precast Manhole |EA 10 $20,000 $200,000
17 4~ Service Lateral Reconnection IEA 46 45,000 $230,000
Sanitary Sewer Improvements Tota! $1,002,500|
Water System Improvements
18 8" Restrained PVC C900 Waterline & Appurienances LF 1,500 $185 $277,500
19 12" Hot Tap Assembly EA 1 $15,000 $15,000
20 New 3/4° Single Water Meter & 3/4" Service Connection EA 3 48,800 $52,800
21 New 3/4” Dual Water Meter & 1" Service Connection EA 11 $8,600 $94,600
22 New 6% Gate Valve EA 1 $4,300! $4,300
23 New 8° Gate Valve EA 9 45,000 $45,000
24 Fire Hydrant Assemblles EA 4 $14,000] $56,000
25 8" Permanent Flush Assembly |Ea 1 $7,000 $7,000
26 lAbandon Existing 6° Asbestos Waterline in Place |L5 1 $11,000. $11,000
Water System Improvements Total $563,200f
Miscellanecus
27 lRock Excavation {Contingent Item} ICY I 25 $500| $12,5001
Miscellzneous Total $12,500
SNC Total| $2,505,182|
General Note:
This prediminary opinion of probable construction cost is the Engineer’s best judg as & professional engineer 9 by famiiar with this type of constriction.  However, since the
Enginger has no conltrol over market conditions, the Eng does not o that prog Dicts, or actual construction cost wif not vary fiom this estimate,

1A



AGENDA ITEM 13.

Discussion and possible action to approve
amendments to the District’s Show Removal
Policy 2010P-01.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

75



INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
3394 JAMES LEE PARK RD., #A
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89705
TEL: (775) 267-2805 FAX: (775) 267-3510
www.indianhillsnevada.com

SNOW REMOVAL POLICY
2010P-01

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain uniform definitions and procedures for snow
and ice control operations for the Indian Hills General Improvement District. Snow and ice control
operations will be provided in a safe and cost-effective manner keeping in mind safety, budgetary,
personnel and environmental concerns.

The District has ne legal responsibility to provide any form of snow and ice control.

Commencing Snow and Ice Control measures: The General Manager shall decide when snow and ice
control measures are to begin. Plowing operations normally begin with snowfall accumulations of 4 inches or more
in depth on stage one streets. Plowing on stage two streets will begin when the storm has stopped or as time allows.
Lesser amounts may require plowing or other control measures such as the application of cinders depending upon
weather conditions. Customary procedures dictate Monday thru Friday (exclusive of Holidays) as having priority
over Holiday and weekend snow and ice control operations due to lesser vehicle trips and budgetary concerns.

Mobilization: The General Manager shall notify staff when storm events may require snow and ice control
operations. Staff shall ensure that the district issued cellular phones are available to receive phones calls and shall
follow directions as issued for mobilization time and place. Call back and other authorized pay will be effective as
appropriate to the snow and ice control operation and mobilization. Authorization has been granted to pay District
employees overtime during storm conditions which meet the criteria for initiating Stage One and Stage Two of the
snow removal plan.

Staff Scheduling: The General Manager shall establish staff schedules for snow and ice control operations with
public safety considered as the highest priority. Most snow and ice control operations will commence in the early
morning weekday hours in response to anticipated peak vehicle trips. Weekend and Holiday snow and ice control
operations will be conducted as determined by the General Manager or emergency services personnel.

Snow and Ice Control Priorities:
* Stage One: North/South Sunridge, Mica, Haystack, Smoketree Ave., Plymouth Drive, Vista Grande Blvd.
from Plymouth Drive to Jacks Valley Road and Silverado Dr. from Park View to Jacks Valley Rd.
e Stage Two: All remaining residential streets, cul-de-sacs (where snow is piled in the middle} and parking lots.
o Stage Three: All other areas of public access.

Snow and Ice Control Materials: Cinders and sand are regularly used for both snow and ice control measures.
Snow and ice control operations will only be conducted when weather conditions do not endanger the safety of
employees, equipment and property.

Additionally, operations will only be conducted when effective.

Operations may be suspended or delayed due to such factors as severe cold, high winds, limited visibility, and rapid
accumulation of snow or ice.

Resident Responsibilities and Concerns: It is the District’s policy that property owners or their designee are
responsible for removing snow and ice from sidewalks abutting their property within 24 hours of the storm ending.
The District wiltl not remove snow or ice from private driveways approach, walkways, or sidewalks abutting private
property. There may be a certain amount of snow deposited in driveways or sidewalks during plowing regardless of
whether they were cleared before the arrival of a District plow. The District understands how upsetting it can be to
residents who have shoveled their walks and driveways approach only to have the District come along and cover
them up. However, our first priority is to keep the streets clear and open for everyone’s safety. The cost of
providing adequate personnel and equipment to clear private driveways and abutting sidewalks of deposited snow

from plowing is cost prohibitive.
Adopted July 10, 1997
Amended ﬁ May 17, 2023




Repair of Damaged Private Property: Snow and ice control operations can cause private property damage
even under the best circumstances and care exercised by District staff. Claims for damage shall be forwarded to the
District General Manager and the District’s insurance provider for resolution.

Adopted July 10, 1997
Amended “May 17,2023

79



Snow Removal Policy FAQ

e The District has no legal obligation to provide any
snow removal/ and or ice control.

¢ Plowing operations normally begin with snowfall
of accumulations of 4 inches or more in depth.

¢ Snow removal will happen primarily Monday-
Friday. (excluding holidays)

e Cinders will be applied to intersections and streets
with a steep grade depending upon weather
conditions.

e Operations may be suspended due to weather
conditions that may endanger the safety of
employees, equipment or property.

Resident responsibility:

e Property owners or their designee is responsible
for removing snow and ice from sidewalks
abutting their property within 24 hours of the
storm ending.

IHGID is not responsible for:

¢ Removing snow or ice from private driveways,
walkways, or sidewalks abutting private property.

Adopted July 10, 1997
Amended HMay 17,2023



AGENDA ITEM 14.

Discussion only regarding Indian Hills General
Improvement District’s investments to seek
opportunities for ROl improvement within
allowances prescribed under NRS.

(Trustee, Robert Garcia)

1T



AGENDA ITEM 15a.

Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative

2. Water
3. Wastewater

Ik



General Manager Report May 17, 2023

It has been relatively guiet which has given us some great opportunities to get some
maintenance and upkeep done.

The Parks & Street department have been busy getting the irrigation systems active and
adjusted. The grass is looking green! The Field Operations Utility staff have done a great job
getting the parks open.

We had a very successful first Community Cleanup Day. Every dumpster was full by 10:45. As
we were expecting, we had a line going out of the park at the beginning, and a non-stop flow of
traffic coming in to dump. At the end of the day we had 120 yards of household / general
garbage, 80 yards of green waste, and 40 yards of metal / appliance waste. Kelli Nevills from
Nevada Division of Forestry was there handing out big reusable lawn bags and work gloves.
Common Ground church volunteers were there again helping us with the cleanup, and passing
out coffee and donuts. A very big THANK YOU to them!

Our new speed sign has arrived and our District Mechanic has mounted it on our trailer. We
were hoping to have it functional by the board meeting, but the company updated the app
used to access the sign, so we cannot activate the sign until the day of the board meeting. I'm
hoping to have it functional just in time.

We are officially at full staff. It is very difficult to find qualified people that are willing to work,
but | firmly believe we have a great long-term team.

| also was happy to get notification that according to Niche.com, Indian Hills is one of the top 10
places to retire in Nevada.

On a final note, on June 5%, 2023, Indian Hills General Improvement District will be 50 years
old! We will have an anniversary celebration at the Summer Kickoff Party, so be sure to make it
to the Summer Kickoff and join us for the celebration.

Administrative Report May 17, 2023

The ACH program continues to be well received. Residents are thankful the district has
implemented this option for payments. We currently have 524, 25.94% of residents taking
advantage of automatic withdraw. We continue to receive requests and new authorization
forms daily.

In March we sent out 47 past due bills resulting in one disconnection. The account has since

paid in full, and service has been restored. In April we sent out 15 past due bills resulting in 2
disconnections, both accounts paid in full, and service was restored.

19



The district’'s Gazebo reservations are picking up in anticipation of the summer months with
four reservations in April. Sierra Lutheran High School’s Baseball season will be ending in the
next two weeks. We had no tennis court reservations in March and 8 in April.

We had 4 new account sign ups in March and 6 in April. These are homes that have changed
ownership.

We have filled the Field Operations Utility 1 opening. Cody started on Monday, May 8, 2023. He
is a great addition to our team.

As always, our annual Easter Egg Hunt was a huge success with an estimated 150 families
attending. The weather cooperated and fun was had by all.

Our annual Summer Kick off is scheduled for Saturday, June 24, 2023, at James Lee Park from
11:00AM-2:00PM. June 5" marks the District’s 50'" anniversary as a GID, we plan to incorporate
this into our Summer Kick off. As always, | am looking for volunteers to BBQ and help gather
participants for the activities. Please let me know if you would like to volunteer.

Water Department Report May 2023
Water Quality:

- The Bac-T sample results for March and April 2023 came back good.

- The Hobo water plant received 8.9 MG of (Minden) water for March and 13.8 MG for April.
+ North Well and South Well have turned back on due to an increase in water demand.

- Ridgeview Well pumped 1.7 MG of water for March and 1.7 MG for April.

- Hobo well has been shut down for the winter.

Water Plant Rounds:

Every morning all operations of the Water plant are checked. Morning rounds consist of,

- The water level and operation of all water storage tanks are checked and recorded.

- The water pressure at the plant and off-site booster stations is checked and recorded.

- All flow and totalizer meters are checked, and the amount of water used is recorded.

- The booster pumps at the plant are checked for proper voltage and current. They are also
checked for excessive temperatures at bearings and checked for any water leaks. All
information is recorded.

%0



- Water samples are taken from the plant, and we check the water for proper chlorine residual
and calibrate the chlorine analyzer as needed. We also check the water for PH, clarity, and
temperature. All information is recorded.

+ Trends of the water system are checked through SCADA. Checking these trends for anomalies
in the distribution system can give us an early warning of future problems.

Maintenance:

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 879 Valley Crest Dr. due to a leak on
the meter pit coil in the pit.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 904 Meadow Vista Dr. due to a leak on
the meter pit coil in the pit. This repair required the removal of concrete panel to be repaired.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 870 Ridge Crest Dr. due to a leak in the
supply coil in the pit. This repair required the removal of a sidewalk panel to be repaired.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit and a backflow assembly at Coloma trail
head. The meter pit had a leaking shut off valve. The backflow preventer was replaced due to
age. All shut off valves and drain valves for the irrigation system were replaced at the same
time.

- The Water department issued a boil water order for 16 homes on Tourmaline Dr. after a
contractor hired by Douglas County hit a water main while excavating a new culvert pipe. The
water main was repaired within a few hours. The state was notified of the situation and all
required sampling was done. All of the samples taken came back clean and the boil water order
was removed within 72 hours.

- The Water department is continually working with Sierra Control Systems during the SCADA
upgrade project to work out bugs and troubleshoot problems in the SCADA system.

Wastewater Department Report May 2023

1: Treatment plant: Sierra controls upgraded the SCADA and pump controls for the Gorman
Rupp pump house. This included new level transducers for both primary ponds and upgrades to
the Clearscada screen. They also upgraded the Head works SCADA radio.

We prepped the gooseneck trailer for biosolids hauling that started the first week of May.

We started draining winter effluent storage ponds to Sunridge G.C. at the end of April.

4



We are pulling the #1 motor and blower for Sparks Electric for assessment and repair to be
completed this fiscal year.

Ryan performed his first round of overall plant weed spraying in mid- April.
Ryan and | have dragged the roads on a regular basis, especially after any rain.

2: Lift Stations: Sierra Controls is preparing Lift 2 for a PLC and control upgrade along with
Godwin bypass pump SCADA input.

The Lift 3 bypass has been completed and we will be testing operation with the 4” Godwin self-
priming pump.

All 4 lift stations continue to perform satisfactorily.

3: Sewer Collection: Ryan inspected problem manholes and is editing the list as needed. He is
up to date on manhole flushing.

Continue weekly check of sewer hot spots {manholes that develop above average grease
buildup) and physically pulling sewer lids, checking for flow, debris, root intrusion and
confirming locations in relation to our plot maps. This ongoing maintenance of the sewer
system has been very successful;, we have identified potential problems long before they
develop into messy situations.

g3



AGENDA ITEM 15b.

Reports to the Board:

b. District Accountant Report

83



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES
AS OF 4/30/23

CASH BALANCES 4/30/2023
Operating $ 5,663,917.48

Reserved from rate increase $ 2,419,609.42

Reserved for streets $1,376,314.42

Reserved Donations $ =2,691.17

Reserved for water tank $ 22,809.25
Operating Available $ 1,8324983.22
Payroll $ 12,913.14
Money Market $ 3,939,370.14

Reserve for Infrastructure $ 653,131.72

Reserve for Connections $ 526,686.66

Reserve for storm water mgt $  39,175.11

Reserve for sewer debt reserves $  55,621.80

Reserve for short lived assets $ 44,109.70
Money Market Available $ 2,620,645.15
Pipeline $ 560,313.28

Reserve for USDA debt service $  40,284.00

Reserve for O&M $ 67,941.82

Reserve for short lived assets $ 319,238.95

Reserve for AB198 capitalrepl  $  116,500.96

Reserve for construction $ 16,347.55
Pipeline Available 3 -

Total $ 4,466,051.51
Investment Pool
IHGID $ 8,953.57
IHCIP (2m 2007 Bonds) $ 124,962.81
Drinking Revenue Bond $ 258,846.97
Total $ 392,763.35



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES BY FUND
4/30/2023
CASH BALANCES 4/30/2023
WATER SEWER ADMIN
Operating 1,433,394.76 2,093,104.62 2,127,418.10
Reserved from rate increase 1,191,186.05 1,228,423.37
Reserved for sireets 100,000.00 1,276,314.42
Reserved Donations 2,691.17
Reserved for water tank 22,809.25
Operating Available 119,399.46 864,681.25 848,412.51
Money Market 1,232,582.58 1,449,563.27 1,2567,224.29
Reserve for infrastructure 182,516.39 203,296.96 267,318.37
Reserve for Connections 273,603.33 253,083.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 39,1751
Reserve for sewer debt service 55,621.80
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 44,109.70
Money Market Available 776,462.86 893,451.48 950,730.81
Pipeline 560,313.28
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 319,238.95
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 116,500.96
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 895,862.32 1,758,132.73 1,799,143.32

85



INDIAN HILLS GID

ATTORNEY EXPENSES
APRIL 2023
MONTHLY FEE 3,000.00
EXPENSES 11.25
TOTAL 3,011.25

8



sanlea junowe juswied |,
(43M3S %S9 YILYM %SE) «

evIvzZIe'e $

%45°C 0eoe/LiL AInr pue uer anp 90'EE 'OV 96'9LT'ivS ¢ 31V1S 0L0Z INIT3dId
%St 1S0c/L/8 ATHLNOW 00°25€'€ 69'686'vr. $ ANIT3did vasn
%SL'C ¢soefLiL ATHLNOW 80°vS.'y ol'ziz'oel'L $ d3M3AS vasn
%00'¥ 9z0c/LILL AON pue Aey anp - 00°000'ssS ¢ »  QANOY 2002 H3IMISHILVM

440 divd - $ ANO4d 666} ¥aIM3S
%9r'E 9z0ziLiL Ainr pue uer anp ££'0Z2'65 89'29.'vee ¢ aNOg €002 ¥31VM

440 divd - $ aNO4 0002 ¥31VM

31V INJWAVd LNINAVL 3ONVIVE 1930

1S3Y3LINI  TVNIL

€Z/0ElY 40 SV
1830 WH3L ONOT
diD STIH NVIANI



INDIAN HILLS GID

ENGINEERING EXPENSES

APRIL 2023

Engineering fees
Indian Drive
Lift #3 bypass

Yard improvement

2,000.00
5,621.84
356.00

500.00

8,377.84

g8



81

16'€42'L 0§'ST 000 000 L6'€L2'L 0§82 000 000 SIV1OL
000 0 000 000 000 DINVHOIW
gz'c8l 14 000 gc's8l ¥ 00°0 DINVYHDIW
000 0 000 000 000 H3dNS HaAM3S
86°L6 4 000 86°L6 4 000 H3AdNS HIM3S
az'Le (% 000 oz'l6 (4 000 HO31 43am3s
000 0 000 000 000 HO3AL H3IM3S
000 0 000 000 000 1H0ddNS NINQY
£8'66¢ g 000 £8'66¢ §'2 000 1HOddNS NINAY
9G'tlE 9 000 95°¢LE 9 000 H3AdNS H3LVYM
000 0 000 000 000 H43dNS ¥3LYM
000 0 000 000 000 S133dlLs
oo'zel ¥ 000 00°zel ¥ 000 S13341S
000 0 000 000 000 SHYvd
000 0 000 000 000 SYdvd
000 0 000 000 000 HO3A1 H31YM
000 0 000 000 00°0 HO3L1 ¥31VM

shuiuleg SINOH SINOH €20/ Leir sSIinoY €202/ SINOH aafoidwg

[e101 [elol  9jep Aed gjep Aed aep Aed
£202 I1dy
SHNOH LNOTIVI/AWILEIAO

1oUISI JusWaACIdLW| [BIBUSD) Sl UBIpY|



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
CRICKET/VERIZON
GRANT INCOME
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST

** CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

WATER
(OVER)/ 83.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER
1,365,000.00 1,173,089.08  191,910.92  85.94%
82,080.00  20,520.00 61,560.00  25.00%
12,441.60  9,331.20 3,11040  75.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
2,000.00  8,269.89 (6,269.89) 413.49%
0.00  5,985.00 (5,985.00)  0.00%
1,461,521.60 1,217,195.17  244,326.43  83.28%
393,355.78  303,596.31 89,759.47  77.18%
461,125.00 321,654.95  139,470.05  69.75%
230,883.66  144,103.10 86,780.56  62.41%
62,707.23  57,207.32 5499.91  91.23%
108,000.00 138,662.70  (30,662.70) 128.39%
1,256,071.67 965,224.38  290,847.29  76.84%
205,449.93 251,970.79 (46,520.86)
551,000.00 444,740.36  106,259.64  80.72%

** Reserves from rate reserves used to fund SCADA improvements

10



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS

TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT {LOSS)

infrastructure depietion (DEPRECIATION)

SEWER
(OVER)/ 83.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
968,000.00 911,210.79  56,789.21  94.13%
82,080.00  20,520.00  61,560.00  25.00%
25.00 124.64 (99.64) 498.56%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,050,105.00 931,855.43  118,249.57  88.74%
389,257.95 295,535.04  93,722.91  75.92%
211,675.00 153,896.65  57,778.35  72.70%
110,136.39  105,814.52 4,321.87  96.08%
47,53257  39,145.54 8,387.03  82.36%
262,000.00 155,577.83  106,422.17  59.38%
1,020,601.91 749,969.58  270,632.33  73.48%
29,503.09 181,885.85  (152,382.76)
378,000.00 306,844.60  71,155.40  81.18%



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

STREETS

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2023

GENERAL
{OVER)/ 83.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %

AD VALOREM 1,066,626.00 1,127,636.97 (61,010.97) 105.72%
DOUGLAS CQO. CONSOLIDATED TAX 382,383.00 351,826.82 30,556.18 92.01%
PARK REV 500.00 334.00 166.00 66.80%
GRANT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
DONATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
INTEREST 1,600.00 4,253.26 (2,653.26) 265.83%
STORM WATER 21,200.00 18,244.00 2,956.00 86.06%
TOTAL REV 1,472,309.00 1,502,295.05 (29,986.05) 102.04%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 88,155.74 68,692.73 19,463.01 77.92%
OPERATING EXP 223,550.00 159,237.90 64,312.10 71.23%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 215,749.98 116,808.29 98,941.69 54.14%
OPERATING EXP 148,725.00 107,122.40 41,602.60 72.03%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 24,000.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 197,349.98 120,3208.04 77,041.94 60.96%
OPERATING EXP 93,175.00 55,362.77 37,812.23 59.42%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 427,000.00 0.00 427,000.00 0.00%
TOTAL EXP 1,417,705.70 627,532.13 790,173.57 44.26%

PROFIT 54,603.30 874,762.92 (820,159.62)
infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION) 300,700.00 245,705.40 54,994.60 81.71%

03



O
N

68'C2096¢ $  (SSO7T) IWOONI £e'6LZ'1LZ8L $ SNVO1TVLOL  [Z£798'566$ FIGYIIVAY TVL0L
00°0$
[*{*3 \uﬁm.o_‘w UOIJONIISUOD 10) DALSSDY
96'005'91L1L$  juswaoeidal jeyded geL gy J0) dAIesaY
G6'8£2'61€% sjosse pany Joys Joj BnIasay
Z8'Lv6'29% W0 JO} dnISDY
8Z°1LZLLZ8 $ SISNIJX3 TviOolL 00'v8Z'0vs {papuny Ajny) 801A19S 1gap 10} BAISSIY
0.799'8ElL % AepnQ fended 82 €1£'095% sujadid
zeL0Z'i8 8 dx3 1s8183U)
G6P59'LZE § dx3 bunesado
1£'96G'€0E ¢ sjysuag/salees
98°Z9v'9..8 a|qeqieay jase Asuol
mm.mom.m NNﬁ SUOOAUUOY 10} BAIDSEY
mm.m_‘m.ww [N alnonaselu 10) anosay
21'66L2LZ'L S INNIAIY WLOL 867285267 1LS 1oep Asuol
00'686'S $ BWodU| ISIy
0Z'LEE'S $ UoZUBA
68'692'8% 1sa19U) 9691715 $ ajels auledid
00'025'02$ $83} UO\OBUUOD 69686'vF. $ vasnaupdid  |9¥'66£'6L2$ a|qejieAy Buneiado
Lyoer'clLd S99} 8je7 00'0SZ'¥6L ¢ (%SGE) ZLOZ-puog JoleAN  [GZ'608'CZS YUE) JAJEM 10} panIasay
\o'zoL'ell $ 5394 2ley aseg 80'79L'PEE $ £00Z-puog J2)ep  [S0'981°LEL'LS asealou| 3.l WOl paAIasay
99'068'6/E ¢ s8@a4 JasN = $ 000zZ-puog Jajepy 92 ¥6E'EEr'LS Bunesado
SIASNIdX3 / SANNIAIY SIONVIVE NVO1 S3IDNVIvE HSVD

€ecoc/oely

AUYVININNS GNNd ¥31VM

aio STIH NVIANI



~)
S5

7€°002°282 $  (SSO1) IWOONI | 91'Z20'LE¥'L $ SNVO1TVLOL [£2°2€L°8SLLS I1GVIIVAY TVLOL
8v'LS1'£68$ ajqepieAy Jaxie|y Aauol

90°'SSL'pPy9 $ SIASNIAMXI TVLIOL

€8'//6'6S5L $ fepno |ende)

¥SSrL'6E ¢ dx3 1sausiu| 0.'60L'PFS SlasSE PaAl] HOYS Jamas 10} 9ISy

G9'968'¢SL $ dx3 Bugessdo 08'129'65$ 221A13S 1Gap JOMBS 10} dAIISBY

vO'SEG'G6Z ¢ Slyousg/salees ££'€80'€52$ SUOIIBUUOY JO} BAISY
06'96Z'¢0C$ 2INJONASEYU| JO) BAISSIY
1Z'E95'6FV LS 1oJep Asuol

£p'668°'1£6$ JNNIATY TVL0L

00°0$ awiooul oSN SZ'189°'98% alqejieAy Buperedo

9 ¥TLe 152191y

00025'02$ s83) Uonosuuo) | 91°2L2'0EL L $ puoq Jamas yasn

1E9EY'ELS soaya)e] | 00052'09¢ ¢ (%S9) ZLoZ-puog JoMes  [ZE'€ZH'8ZT LS 95B240U| 9)BJ WOY PaAISSSY

rvLl'168% saa4 Jas - $ 6661-puog JomMas  [29'v0L'€60'CS Buyessdo

S3ISNAX3 / SANNIAIY SIDONVIVE NVO1 SIONVIVE HSVYD

£coz/ocly

AYVINIANS AONNJ ¥3IM3S

aIo ST1IH NVIANI



\»
O’

26°79L'v18% (SSOT) IWOODNI ZeEvL'66L'1S FAVIIVAY T¥VL0L
£1°2£5'229% SISNILX3 TVLOL 18'0£L'066$ a|qepeAy Jaxie|y Asuow
000$ AepnQ |ended
20'€22'12es dx3 BuneledO
90°'608'S0€$ sjjsuag/saueles
LL'GLL'6ES 16W 19]eM LIOYS 10} 9AI959Y
[E'8LE' 2978 2INJONJISENU| JO) SAI9SDY
60'56Z'205°'1$ INNIATH V101 62'v2T'LST' LS 1el Asuol
00°0% snosue|@osIy
00°0% POAIRDas puny JUBID)
TARTA L aWwodu| Jsals| LS ZLY 8res aiqepeay 6uneisdo
00'vEES $994 uonealdsy L1 169'C8 suoneuoq o) paniesay
L6'9E9'LTLLS Xe| WaloleA py A A N VAR s]oa1)s J0) PaAIasey
78'978'L5ES Xe| pojepiosuo)
00'vvZ'8L$ S99 JOJEM WIS 0L'8LY'LCL'CS Bunesado
NINaY
S3ASNIdX3 / SANNIAIY SIAINVIVE HSVD
€coziocly
(N3YOTVA av)

AHVININNS SL1IFULS ‘SHUVd ‘NIWav
aio ST1IH NVIANI



L£°81€°29C
00'see'eee
00'062'€5T
00'0S5'6LZ
00'059'G61
00°0S¥'eLL
00°0SE'Zhi
00'885'€C)
00'969'¢6
00'¢66'9
00'88¥'LE
00°006'81L

000

—
<S—

sanypuadxa paaoidde 1o} Wway) asn am SE 3SEAIOSP SSWISWOS ||IM SJUNOLWE SAISSIY

SIAYISIY ¥d3a
Niwav

96'962'£02 LE'ETY'8TT'L
00°.E€'281L 00'6£¥'88L°L
00°2e¥'G9L 00°0£0'€20°L
00'LE6'EPL 00°'G¥Z'66Z
00°/89'¢Z1 00'601'58S
00'/89'¢01 00°/86'08¢€
00'/89'68 00'€95'12¢
00'169'69 00251 '66
00'9¥S'v.L 00'v9e'L2
00't/56'65 000
00'vL8'op 000
000LE"2E 000
00'00§'22 000
SIAYISTY UYd3aA  SIAYISTIH 1w
UILYMILSYM

€202-1 102 WOXY4

62915281 G0'98L'L6L L £C/OEY 4O SY
00°0.€'90L 00'89F'9LL L €202/0e/9
00°028'v9L 00°2¥2'126 Lezoeoe/9
00'L28'EEL 00¥8¥'€29 020¢/0¢er9
00'020'C41 00'998'9¥2 610¢/0€/9
00'829'¥6 00'2S0°c8y 8102/0€/9
00'829°¢2 00'v69'292 210¢/0E/9
00°0£1'0L 00'9EE'ZEL 910¢/0g/9
00vLL'8Y 00°2e9'8¢ G102/0e/9
00°005'64 000 ¥L0c/0E/9
00°961 'G5 000 €102/0t/9
00°004'0F 000 ZL02/0€/9
00°005'2¢ 000 L 1L0E2/0E/S
SINYISTY ¥d3A  S3AYISIH ALvY| Fiva
HILVYM

dV3A TVISId A8 SIAYIASTIH HSVYD

alO ST7IH NVIANI



AGENDA ITEM 15c.

Reports to the Board:

c. Engineer Report

17



AGENDA ITEM 15d.

Reports to the Board:

d. Attorney Report

¥



AGENDA ITEM 16.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the April 5, 2023, Board Meeting.

19



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705
April §, 2023
Closed Session Meeting 5:00 P.M.
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Dunham, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, and Trustee Garcia.
Trustees Absent: Vice Chairman Stulac and Trustee Siegman.

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Labor Law Attorney Joel Locke.

3:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order:
Chairman Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:01 P.M. Chairman Johnson requested that
Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.

2. Closed Session
Discussion only regarding possible amendments to the Collective Bargaining

Agreement with the International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 39,
AFL-CIO.

3. Adjourn Closed Session:
The closed session adjourned at 5:49 P.M.

The public was invited into the Regular meeting at 6:00 P.M.

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting

Trustees Present: Chairman Dunham, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, and Trustee Garcia.
Trustees Absent: Vice Chairman Stulac and Trustee Siegman.

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson, Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson, and District Accountant Stacie Cobb.

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-1-

100



Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer Tim Russell, Residents Kathryn
Clark-Ross, Kathy Waters, Sharon Buckley, Lynn Dement, Brian Patrick, Ronny Lynch, Ed Terlau,
Marilyn Foster, Sharon Silvas, Ben and Debbie Walker, Pat and Jim Rowbottom, Joan Zadny, Leo
Hendrick, Don & Mary Bielas, Susan Harris, Jeri Wilkins, RL & Cindy Langston, Brenda Nixon,
Bambi Torres, Dave Clarke, Kendra Wilson, Roy Ferris, Jim Farina, Justin Tenney, Priscilla
Wilson, Newton Ota, Lindsay Dugas, David Rigali, Cynthia Antokal, Phillppe Piraino, John
Lufrano and Kurt Hildebrand.

Others Present via Zoom Meeting: none.

6:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting

4, Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Chairman Dunham called the meeting to order at 6:06PM.

5. Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Trustee Garcia.

6. Public Interest Comment: Resident Bambi Torres stated that she lives in Sunridge and there
is a lot of fast traffic on north and south Sunridge, she is asking the board to consider putting
in speed bumps building. They are building hundreds of houses to the north of them, and it is
only going to get worse. There are kids that live in the area, there are elderly people, and
these cars just whiz on by and it is about time we get speed bumps.

Resident Kendra Wilson stated that she lives on Somerset and her Edward Jones office is on
Mica so a couple of things she just wanted to follow up on. The bike commute on Vista
Grande she had brought up before the bike lane being covered by the Mica Cottages
development so she would like to have an update on that, and the sidewalk exits go right into
a busy road instead of the less busy road. She thinks that is a safety issue and would
appreciate any update to the managers’ report.

Resident Kathy Waters stated she lives on Opalite Drive. Two months ago, she talked about
delegation of authority, last month was sourcing three sources, this month she wants to talk
about process to get to the budget. Kathy stated back in the day before your day, there was a
system that she designed that was a computerized purchase requisition that requisition turned
into a formal purchase order computer generated and all of the qualified sourcing was on the
computer, approved for utilization. The three sources usually consisted of a new source,
existing sources, and a second source token of order. If the major source decided not to be
used, they had a backup and it also made it competitive. The computer report was linked to
accounting, identified last year’s costs, the variances between sources, and accounting and
budget from the previous year as well as quotes for next year. So, your quotes came in before
your budget got done every year. Seventy percent of the budget was hers, in one year with an
increase in business projected at 50% she was called in, in front of the Board of Directors to
give a report on how she was going to reduce costs by 25%. The cost reduction involved
negotiating with suppliers, negotiating unnecessary requirements from engineering, space
reallocation and reduction, outsourcing versus in house.

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

o %



Resident Lynn Demet stated that she noticed two board members are missing, how will that
affect any vote that may be taken tonight.

Chairman Dunham stated we will see.
7. Approval of Agenda

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve the agenda as recommended removing items 8, 10, 11 and 12.
Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano seconded. Motion carried 3-0. Ayes by Chairman Dunham,
Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano and Trustee Garcia. Vice Chairman Stulac and Trustee Siegman were
absent from the meeting.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that he would recommend that Chairman Dunham reopen
public comment then. The people that are here may have wanted to address the Board regarding
the items that were on the agenda that now have been removed and they have lost that
opportunity if you don’t open public comment again. Reopen public comment for any matter
right now.

Public comment: Resident Joan Zadny stated she was asked to speak about if a dog park would add
property value. Joan stated that she has been a realtor for 26 years, she has sold more than 1,000
homes in that time. An appraiser is trained to evaluate the value of a property based on facts using
various things like square footage, number of bedrooms, bathrooms, upgraded kitchens,

professional landscaping, construction, and core condition among other things. There are subjective
factors, however, associated with a property that are things that a buyer may want like being near a
school. These subjective factors don’t always hold the same importance for everyone, what one
person sees as valuable another person may see as detrimental. It is one of the reasons an appraiser
deals with facts when he evaluates the property. She will give a few subjective examples that are
pertinent to this discussion. A dog park may be a good thing for some however it may not work for
others who don’t want the noise, don’t like dogs doesn’t, don’t want any odor that may arise or
worry about liability. A neighborhood school may be a great thing for a family but may be the last
thing a retired person would want who wants to live in a peaceful place without playground noise
and extra traffic around the school. Joan stated that she was asked to testify in a divorce case several
years ago, about the market value of a couple’s home to sell. The husband was challenging her
about the market analysis because she had not included the value of a hot tub. This again is an
example of something that is not a positive thing for everyone, if a new buyer doesn’t want it there
would be unwanted costs to remove it and what if it doesn’t even work. After discussion, the judge
agreed with her analysis and the subjective value was not added. Last a swimming pool may be
something that some people want but not everyone, there is liability attached to it, very expensive
upkeep, weather here is very hard on them with freezing temperatures. In conclusion her opinion is
that is that a subjective factor that does not automatically add property value to homes in close
proximity to it.

Resident Pat Rowbottom stated she live at South Sunridge she wants to talk about the bricks, she
went back and read a lot of minutes in the last few weeks. She sees when the bricks were first
proposed by Garcia and the questions from other board members about how they would handle the
sale, ordering, exc. of the bricks, now somehow the bricks have gotten into a snarl of issues, several
issues like being connected to the dog park. Last month in their bills it said the bricks would be put

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-3-

[0A



by a bench for reflection, then all of a sudden in March the bricks were being discussed as an
entrance for the dog park. The other thing is when you first settled on these bricks it was for Vista
Grande park and then that changed. She has a disagreement of having bricks at the entrance of the
dog park, they want to honor people who have done things for the GID they are going to be pooped
on and peed on. She went on a research trip to the north side park and there are already some bricks
at north Sunridge park, it seems to her you can replace ten of the bricks at a time and it is a much
quieter park with no dogs, just an idea the bricks would be better at north Sunridge park.

Resident Sharon Silvas stated that she lives on Sunview and Sunridge, her home is right behind the
proposed dog park along with other neighbors. She concerned with the cars parking on Sunridge
drive that is a bike lane, this can cause an unsafe condition for the cyclists, her next concern is how
does she handle complaints for noise complaints if it becomes a nuisance, will gates be locked until
open time and locked again at closing time. Because of location it will affect her and her three
neighbors every day. Sharon stated that it has been brought to her attention that a few of you on the
board here don’t even own a dog. She doesn’t know if you have an opinion of if or if you have ever
experienced the dog park at all so she would like to see a show of hands own a dog here and how
may would actually use a dog park. Would you please consider moving the dog park to the west
side of the park as it will not interfere with any homes.

Resident Lynn Demet stated that she lives on Mica drive she would like to say a lot of the people
here do not live around the park and will not be affected as much as others will. It is a widespread
opinion of many that aren’t right by the park. She had to opportunity to speak to Scott Morgan from
Douglas County last week to tell him we are having some issues here with all the complaints and
the people not in favor of the dog park, he told her he had been assured by the board that notice has
been given by the board in newsletters and agendas of this dog park. Lynn stated that she has five
years of water bills she challenges you to find at the bottom of any bills notice of the dog park. That
was misrepresented to the county in her opinion, he was also pretty upset about that he indicated
that he was going to call Mr. Johnson, he also indicated since there no differentiation in the
agreement as to how much money goes to each dog area that all the money can go into the James
Lee Dog park. She thinks it is twice the size of the south Sunridge park so she would like to propose
that all the money goes into this dog park here, put some grass, trees make it a place that dogs want
to have room to run instead of .17 acres here. It is an accident waiting to happen, the only shade tree
in the park buts right against the fence no one will sit out there it will be very hot in August and
September. She understands that you will adjust the sprinklers over there are we going to kill the
grass and trees.

Resident Ronny Lynch stated what part of no doesn’t the board understand, we the users told you
loud and clear we do not need an enclosed dog park, it is in the wrong place the water pools up
behind the home and the water sits there and makes a mosquito breeding area he treats it himself.
You need to take a lot of soil to bring that to grade. No, we do not want a dog park.

Resident Cynthia Antokal stated she lives in south Sunridge, she stated that it is her understanding
That there has been talks about the dog park for the last three years she also knows there is a
separate thing with the memory bricks, they are being conflated now. Her question about that is if
there is a dog park, must the bricks be associated with or inserted into the dog park. Cynthia asked
why south Sunridge park was selected as the location for the dog park. With that question it is her
understanding grass will be removed to accommodate the dog park and it will be fenced in so that

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4 -

(03



sounds like some construction and engineering is going to occur, will there be an assessment to the
homeowners for any of the liability, ongoing insurance, and coverage to take care of that, us
meaning Sunridge homeowners. As for property evaluations, she reads commercial and residential
appraisals for a living and how this would be called out in any residential appraisal is either an
amenity or a nuisance it is going to get called out and will be associated with the property just like
the GID, parks and anything that is on the subject property called the single-family dwelling.
Cynthia stated she has no opinion she would just analyze it and an appraiser would have to call it
out so just FYT it will be part of assessment for value if you are selling, buying, or refinancing. Why
was this location selected since it is removing some grass and enjoyment of the park.

Resident Cindy Langston stated that she lives at 979 Hillside. She has worked with a lot of animal’s
pet sitting, rescues, and worked at a vet, it is irresponsible to trust every dog that they will not attack
another dog. There was a case where a while back a puppy in that area was attacked and killed a
puppy. This is one of many stories you are asking for tragedy. Here they will not be separated, you
will hear a lot from all of us, you don’t want to go there, trust me. You are not considering dog
behavior, most of you don’t own a dog so you don’t know anything about dog behavior.

Resident Jim Rowbottom stated the other day he went to the James Lee dog park and took a picture
of the rules and regulations, very well done, you covered the most important things. How will you
enforce these rules, he knows you can’t have someone on site all the time. The other night a friend
mentioned a dog park where he lives, a pit bull attacked and severely injured another dog if they get
a dog that is a consistent problem can they be banned from the park.

Resident Marilyn Foster stated that she is 94 years old and has lived in the district for 27 years. She
walks her dog every day twice a day on a leash. There are signs at each end of the park about the
rules in the park, but they are not followed, you have bag dispensers, and no one cleans up after
their dog, she sees big piles of poop in the park. She has even yelled at one person to pick up after
their dog, they responded that it is the park’s responsibility to clean it up. She does not want her dog
in a dog park, and she would not let her dog off a leash in a park. The mess behind her home is an
eye sore, it is a mess the mosquitos breed there it needs to be cleaned up.

Resident Dave Clark stated that he lives on Tourmaline, his dog passed away in December. He was
just taking a quick look at the parking configuration, yes it looks like there is curved corner on the
south side that would be a great spot for parking. The bike lanes, he grew up when they didn’t have
bike lanes be vigilant and careful, pull over motorist need to be careful about bikes. As far as an
enclosed area for the dogs, great idea yeah, yeah, yeah. The bricks for the landscaping there can be
a better design yeah there will need to be landscaping that needs to be done. Parking is doable yeah,
yeah put it in the middle where there are no homes directly involved yeah, yeah people need to pick
up after their dogs and dogs need to be trained.

Resident John Lufrano stated that he has been a resident for 23 years, he is going to have to give a
little historical data because there is some confusion going on. He was the General Manager for 10
years and he was the General Manager who brought this to the board in a workshop in November of
2019. The intent of that workshop was to continue with the program to remove useless turf areas in
the district, these areas that served no recreational purpose whatsoever other than we look at green
grass. We have been removing areas within the district for years. South Sunrigde park has the most
wasteful water in the district, we irrigate that with the precious drinking water you and I drink.

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-5-

j0Y



Shortly after 2019 they looked into passive recreation opportunities, passive we don’t have any of
those in this district, we have nothing this whole county has nothing. The intent was to remove these
useless turf areas that we are using massive resources on and massive money, let’s put something in
this place that we can all utilize. Not one thing we do is going to hurt the district, it’s not going to
hurt the value of this district, we are adding amenities. When this was brought to the district in 2019
there was direction and then covid happened and shut the world down, so he never got to proceed.
We have to get rid of the useless turf areas around the district and start doing things with
recreational value, we have nothing.

Resident Lindsay stated that she lives on Sunview, she has two amazing dogs, but they bark and she
works so there will be massive noise having a dog park and having people there will have constant
dog noise. There is an echo that spreads out the entire neighborhood, lot of noise, she apologizes
now if this goes through. If you are set on a dog park move it to the other side of the park.

Resident Lee Hendrick stated that she lives on Smoketree, she is against the dog park she has three
Dogs. She takes them to the mayor’s park people are conscious of their dogs, they pick up after
their dogs and the dogs don’t fight. She is afraid this will be like Sonoma, which is a mess, she has
been injured at Sonoma. She is really opposed to the dog park it is nice to walk through the park
with the grass and have kids play.

Resident Justin Tenny stated that he lives on Parkview drive on the corner that would be right

across from this is a dog run, it is a very small area and not a dog park. He agrees that there is a lot
of wasted space in the park. It would behoove everyone to put something in but 90% of people do
not want this dog park but there is only a handful of dog parks in the area however there is a dog
park one mile away. The money spent on this would not be beneficial for the community and the
people that live in the surrounding area. To the parking issue, there have been multiple times people
cut the corner and ride up on the sidewalk, you don’t want to add to the already busy road.

Resident Craig Watkins stated that he lives on Dog Leg Drive and has been a dog owner all his life.
Craig stated that he is in favor of the dog park. There are a lot of grey hairs in here and everyone
owns a dog that is in here and he thinks that they are all responsible for their dogs as they should be.
He lives on the golf course and walks his dog in the golf course, people won’t pick up after their
dogs. Having a big dog, he has been to this dog park, he has a very controlled dog on and off leash.
He believes a park in this area is very necessary, everyone in this room owns a dog, he can’t not see
why we would not use it and participate in the dog park, they all need it. He also agrees that we
need other recreation opportunities like shuffleboard or bocce ball courts.

Resident Roy Farris stated that he lives in L *adagio on Dog Leg. He saw article in the paper

yesterday, the Record Courier asked for individuals in the community to come to this board and
make their wishes known. Roy stated that he posted a statement on the next door in favor of the dog
park it received quite a few comments and responses or reactions the nextdoor app themselves sent
him an email saying that over 3,800 views had been done to his statement in addition to that a
number of these reactions he tabulated those he came up with a percentage of those, you can
rescarch this yourself 84% of those comments from other individuals were in support of the dog
park 16% were non supportive and did not want a dog park there. That is representative of the dog
park. He bought a brick for the dog park; someone told him that those don’t count those are vanity
bricks that is highly offensive he did it out of support for the dog park. We have heard nothing

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-6-

|05



tonight on the needs of the entire community, we have heard of the needs of these people who are
very interested because they live close to the park and he empathizes with them, he understands
that. This is a public park paid for with public funds to be used by all the residents of Indian Hills, it
should be considered that dog owners are also part of Indian Hills. He is in support of the park.

Resident Dave Regali stated that he lives on Sunview, he heard about the comments on next door.
The dog park would be right behind his house everybody who lives around this park seems to not
want it. That says something. There is another dog park right here and another one by Costco. He
understands the water issue, his fence gets blasted by the sprinklers. Fix the sprinklers that will save
water. He is definitely not in favor of this.

Resident Kendra Wilson stated that she lives on Somerset she feels compelled to give her opinion
because it is the non-popular one in the room. She bought a brick too she is a proud supporter of
Indian Hills dog parks. She would love to take her little dog to a dog park, it would be an amenity
and a benefit to the community. Kendra stated that she has been to several meetings where this was
discussed, and it has all been she thought thoroughly done.

Resident Pam Torres stated that she would love to see shuffleboard or bocce ball or something else
there. The water is an issue, there is not enough room for the dog park, put it in the other area and
you could make a large and small dog area. She would like to see the money put into James Lee dog
park, there is no shade, it would be nice to have some shade to sit under. That is a good dog park a
little grass would be nice.

Recess 6:59PM
Reconvene 7:05PM

Resident Sharon Buckley stated that she lives at 1039 Mica Drive directly above dog park. Sharon
stated that she wasn’t going to speak tonight but was compelled. Sharon stated that she doesn’t want
to address the comments on next door but it was brought up by Mr. Farris she is in total agreement
that conversations have gotten out of control and a lot of things have been said that are hurtful to a
lot of people including something that Mr. Farris said to her and a few other people as well so he is
just as guilty of making negative comments to people on nextdoor. Mr. Ferris, she disagrees with
the fact that 84% if those comments are in support of the dog park, a lot of those people in support
of the dog park does not live in Indian hills they live other places. Sharon stated that she moved
here in 2003. The reason she bought her house was because there is no one to her right, no one
behind her and she has a 280-degree view that is spectacular, and she has a beautiful park down
below to walk her dogs. She would also like to address how the park is actually utilized, that is the
most used area of South Sunridge park, the area you are planning to put a dog park. People picnic
there, they play on the basketball courts. You look at the design, it is right up against that area, she
spent time walking on the west side of the park today, she doesn’t know the exact measurements but
in walking it is .32 acres that could be used. Half facing Smoketree.

8. Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal from Lumos & Associates in the
amount of $9,800.00 for Civil Engineering Services for the South Sunridge Park Dog
Park.

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
2] 2

[0l



This item was tabled, to be discussed at a later date. The board allowed public comment on
this item as the public was not aware during the first public interest comment period that this
item would be removed from the agenda.

Public comment: none

9. Discussion and possible action to adopt the Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024.

The Board discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Brian Patrick commented about having been on the board over the
years, one reason we have a tentative budget is so the public can understand what we are going
through here. The board has questions, back in the ancient days they went through this line by line.
His comment is you have several people here who have probably never seen this, and he is curious
to know if there should be more explanation of increases and decreases from a reserve account.

Resident Kathy Waters stated the question is do you do a reserve analysis, is that in the regulations
she did that in California and you had to justify them and give a reserve analysis. Is that anywhere
in the realm of the GID, is that part of the reason you moved some money into operations.

Resident Lynn Dement stated that she is not familiar with the budget. This is the first time she has
seen it. Water is our prime concern here; can we have someone that knows what they are doing
regulate the sprinklers in South Sunridge park, we don’t need to water every night it sprays
everywhere it needs to be looked at. That is part of the budget.

Board of Trustees further discussion/comment: The Board had no further discussion on this
item.

Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano motioned to adopt the Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
with amendments to sewer rate reserves, changing the $200,000 to $160,000 with the $40,000
going towards the sewer operating budget. Trustee Garcia seconded. Motion carried 3-0. Ayes
by Chairman Dunham, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, and Trustee Garcia. Vice Chairman Stulac
and Trustee Siegman were absent from the meeting.

10.  Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal from Lumos and Associates in the
amount of $19,700.00 for additional professional services related to the Indian Drive
sewer lining design.

This item was tabled, to be discussed at a later date.

Public comment: none

Board of Trustees further discussion/comment:

11. Discussion and possible action to approve amendments to the District’s Snow Removal
Policy 2010P-01.

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-8-

107



This item was tabled, to be discussed at a later date.
Public comment: none
Board of Trustees further discussion/comment:

12.  Discussion only regarding Indian Hills General Improvement District’s investments to
seek opportunities for ROI improvement within allowances prescribed under NRS.

This item was tabled, to be discussed at a later date.
Public comment: none

13.  Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the March 15, 2023,
Board Meeting.

Public comment: none

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the March 15, 2023, Board Meeting.
Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano seconded. Motion carried 3-0. Ayes by Chairman Dunham,
Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano and Trustee Garcia. Vice Chairman Stulac and Trustee Siegman
were absent from the meeting.

14.  Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.
Trustee Garcia requested to have an item on the April meeting agenda to discuss the
district’s investments and what options are available to us.

15.  Adjournment
Chairman Dunham motioned to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Garcia seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

Ayes by Chairman Dunham, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, and Trustee Garcia. Vice Chairman
Stulac and Trustee Siegman were absent from the meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 7:32P.M.

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-9.

/0¥



FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Secretary/Treasurer
Yicky Lufrano

Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-10 -

104



